DESERT WATER AGENCY é BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AUGUST 2, 2016 @ REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING 8:00 A.M. OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 SOUTH GENE AUTRY TRAIL — PALM SPRINGS - CALIFORNIA

About Desert Water Agency:

Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government. Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert's
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs.

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - July 19, 2016 CIOFFI
3. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT KRAUSE
4. COMMITTEE REPORTS — A. Executive — July 26, 2016 CIOFFI
5. PUBLIC INPUT:

Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency. In addition, members of the public
may speak on any item listed on the agenda as that item comes up for consideration. Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more than
three (3) minutes. As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the agenda.

6. ITEMS FOR ACTION

A.  Water Use Violation — Civil Penalty Hearing (5) KRAUSE
7. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

A. Annual Review of Resolution Establishing Policy and Guidelines for Agency Investments KRIEGER

B. State Water Contractors’ Meeting — July 21, 2016 RIDDELL

C. Lake Perris Dam Seismic Remediation Update KRAUSE
8. PUBLIC INFORMATION METZGER

A. Media Information

B. Pl Activities

9. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS
10. CLOSED SESSION

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1)
Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1)
Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al

C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1)
Name of Case: Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. Department of Interior

D. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1)
Name of Case: Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert Water Agency



DWA Board Agenda
August 2, 2016
Page 2

E. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8
Property: 1.17 acre lot North of the Northeast corner of Sunrise Way and Mesquite Avenue,
APN No. 502-560-038
Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steven L. Johnson, Asst. General Manager
Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite HOA
Under Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition

11. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION - REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION
12. ADJOURN

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person
with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working
hours prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make reasonable arrangements. Copies of records provided to Board members which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may
be obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda.



8686
MINUTES 2
OF THE REGULAR MEETING
OF THE
DESERT WATER AGENCY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

July 19, 2016
DWA Board: James Cioffi, President Attendance
Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer
Patricia G. Oygar, Director
Craig A. Ewing, Director

R

DWA Staff: Mark S. Krause, General Manager
Steve Johnson, Asst. General Manager
Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director
Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board
Ashley Metzger, Outreach/Conserv. Manager
Irene Gaudinez, Human Resources Manager

A e A=A g W

Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger )

Public: David Freedman, PS Sustainability Comm. )

17528. President Cioffi opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked Pledge of Allegiance
everyone to join Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer in the Pledge of Allegiance.

17529. President Cioffi called for approval of the June 28, 2016 . oval oro6/2816
Special Board meeting minutes. Special Board Mitg.
Minutes
Director Oygar moved for approval. After a second by
Director Ewing, the minutes were approved as written.

17530. President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to gener:u Manager’s
provide an update on Agency operations. oot

Mr. Krause stated on July 13 at approximately 8:30 a.m., staff g e, pydrant—
responded to a stolen fire hydrant at the north west corner of Sepulveda Rd. Scpulveda/Los Felices
and Los Felices. As staff was driving in the area, they found another stolen
fire hydrant on the south west corner of Zanjero Rd. and Yorba Rd. There
was no water loss due to the thicves turning the valves off. A police report
was made.

Mr. Krause stated on July 14 at approximately 10:00 a.m. water Leak — Star
Assistant Construction Superintendent Kuhlman responded to a leak on Star Rd/Racquet Club Rd.

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 07/19/16



Rd., north of Racquet Club Rd. The Palm Springs Fire department observed
a sinkhole forming under a truck parked directly over the leak and advised
the owner to move his truck. Once the truck was moved, water shot across
the street hitting a vehicle. The vehicle’s owner was notified and he also
moved his vehicle.

Concluding his report, Mr. Krause noted several meetings and
activities he participated in during the past several weeks.

17531. President Cioffi noted the minutes for the July 14, 2016
Executive Committee were provided in the Board’s packet.

President Cioffi noted the minutes for the July 14, 2016
Conservation & Public Affairs Committee were provided in the Board’s
packet.
17532. President Cioffi opened the meeting for public input.

There being no one from the public wishing to address the
Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period.

17533. President Cioffi called upon Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer to
provide an overview of financial activities for the month of June 2016.

Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer reported that the Operating
Fund received $1,812,078 in Water Sales Revenue, $162,213 in
Reclamation Sales Revenue. $12,944 was included in the Miscellaneous
Receipts (SCE Solar I Energy Rebate-May). $1,682,617 was paid out in
Accounts Payable. Year-to-date Revenues and Expenses will be provided
upon completion of the 2015-16 audit. There were 22,304 active services as
of June 30, 2016 compared to 22,308 as of May 31, 2016.

Reporting on the General Fund, Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer
stated $223,453 was received in Property Tax Revenue. $352,708 was
received from CVWD (SWP Management Agreement-January thru March
2016). $41,312 was received in SWP Refunds. $13,357 was received from
SCE for Whitewater Hydro Power Sales (March & April 2016). $2,179,976
was paid out in State Water Project Charges.

Regarding the Wastewater Fund, $3,680 was received in
Sewer Contract payments. There are a total of 72 contracts with 29
delinquent (40%). $114,844 was paid out in Accounts Payable.

17534. President Cioffi asked Assistant General Manager Johnson to
present staff’s request for the public hearing item for the purpose of
accepting and responding to public comments on Desert Water Agency
Public Health Goals report.

8687

General Manager’s
Report (Cont.)

General Manager’s
Meetings & Activities

Committee Reports
Execute 07/14/16

Conservation & Public
Affairs 07/14/16

Public Input

Secretary-Treasurer’s
Report — June 2016

Operating Fund

General Fund

Wastewater Fund

Items for Action:
Public Hearing Item/
Public Health Goals

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 07/19/16



Mr. Johnson stated that the Agency’s water system complies
with all the health-based drinking water standards and maximum
contaminant levels (MCL’s) required by the California Department of
Health Services and the United States Environmental Protection Agency.
He stated that the public hearing notice was posted on the Agency’s bulletin
board, Cathedral City City Hall, Palm Springs City Hall and Desert Hot
Springs City Hall. It was also published in The Public Record on July 5 and
July 12. There have been no written or verbal comments received from the
public.

President Cioffi opened the public hearing. There being no
one from the public wishing to speak on this item, he then closed the public
hearing.

17535. President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to
present staff’s request for adoption of Resolution No. 1141 granting
retirement status to Debbie Randall.

Mr. Krause announced that Ms. Randall is retiring from the
Agency after 24 years of dedicated service.

President Cioffi thanked Ms. Randall for her work over the
years, he then read aloud Resolution No. 1141 highlighting Ms. Randall’s
years of dedicated service to Desert Water Agency.

Director Ewing moved for adoption of Resolution No. 1141.
Vice President Stuart seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

RESOLUTION NO. 1141
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE DESERT WATER AGENCY GRANTING
RETIREMENT STATUS TO DEBBIE RANDALL

17536. President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to
present the civil penalty hearing for water use violations.

Mr. Krause noted there have been more than 250 violations
issued and have received three hearing requests, two of which will be heard
today (neither appellant is present). The third will be heard at the August 2
meeting due to a scheduling conflict.

Mr. Krause announced the first appellant is Beverly Elmore.
He then presented information and noted the wviolation: 1) Irrigating
between the restricted hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. The fine is $50 and
the reason for appeal is that there was a valve issue.

There was consensus by the Board that the appellant rectified
the situation once it was brought to her attention.

8688
Action Items:
{(cont.)
Public Hearing Item/
Public Health Goals

Open/Close Public
Hearing

Request Adoption of
Resolution No. 1141
Granting Retirement
Status to Debbie
Randall

Resolution No. 1141
Adopted

Water Use Violations —
Civil Penalty Hearing

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 07/19/16



Director Oygar made a motion to uphold the appeal and waive
the penalty. After a second by Director Ewing, the motion passed
unanimously.

It was clarified that a violation did occur, but the Board is
waiving the penalty fine.

Mr. Krause announced the second appellant is Gordon
McKiel. He then presented his information and noted the violations: 1)
Irrigating between the restricted hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. and 2)
Runoff from irrigation onto hardscape. The fine is $100 and the reason for
appeal is that there was a power outage that affected the irrigation timer.

President Cioffi noted-this is Mr. McKiel’s second violation
and there is significant runoff.

Vice President Stuart made a motion to deny the appeal
(violation occurred) and issue the penalty fine. After a second by Director
Ewing, the motion passed unanimously.

17537. President Cioffi noted that Board packets included media and
public information reports for June 2016.

Ms. Metzger announced that she will be speaking tonight at
the Cathedral City Rotary Club. She reminded everyone of the Turf
Buyback Program Workshop on July 21 at the Agency.

17538. President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to report on
the June Water Use Reduction Figures.

Mr. Krause reported that the Agency and its customers
achieved a 33 percent reduction during June 2016 compared to June 2013.

17539. President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to report on
the Perris Dam Seepage Recovery Project.

Mr. Krause provided background on the Lake Perris reservoir,
which was constructed in 1974. Since its construction, the water levels in
the Perris north groundwater subbasin have risen close to 200 feet. It is
estimated that 23-45 acre-feet of water seeps from this reservoir in the
subbasin. In order to cease any contributions to the subbasin and to preserve
water that DWA, CVWD and MWD have paid to transport to Lake Perris,
DWR and MWD have agreed to undertake a Perris Seepage Recovery
Project.

Continuing with his report, Mr. Krause stated that DWA,
CVWD and MWD recently met to receive an update on MWD’s progress.
MWD is developing a funding agreement with DWR and will be presenting

8689
Action Items:
{Cont.)
Water Use Violations —
Civil Penalty Hearing

Uphold Appeal
(Violation
Occurred)/Penalty
Waived

Deny Appeal (Violation
Occurred)/Penalty Fine
Issued

Public Information —
June 2016

Items for Discussion:
June Water Use
Reduction Figures

Perris Dam Seepage
Recovery Project

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 07/19/16



8690
to its Board for approval in October. DWA staff plans to bring the details of Discussion Items:

. . e Cont.
construction and costs to the Board after the project planning is complete (o5
and is approved by MWD’s Board. Perris Dam Sccpage
Recovery Project

Concluding his report, Mr. Krause noted that electing to
participate by submitting a signed Phase I proposal to participate form
certifies eligibility to participate in the Sites Reservoir Project,
acknowledges its level of participation and acknowledges the form is only
valid for the project’s Phase 1, and is not committing any funds at this time,
but is committing to use best efforts to enter into an agreement with the
authority and Phase 1 reservoir project agreement committee to become a
member. Mr. Krause stated he intends to submit a Phase 1 proposal to
participate form for 6,500 acre-feet of Class 1 water at a not to exceed cost
of $60/acre-foot for Phase 1 activities. The final call for participation ends
on July 29 at 4:00 p.m.; interested parties applying after this closing will not
be considered.

In response to Director Ewing, Agency Counsel Riddell stated
that Mr. Krause’s intent to sign the form does not commit the Agency.

17540. President Cioffi asked Assistant General Manager Johnson to El’hitewaécr Power
report on the Whitewater Power Plant Update. ant Update

Mr. Johnson stated after two years working with JTN Energy,
the California Independent System Operator (CAISO) granted a certificate
of compliance for the Whitewater Hydro Plant on July 8, satisfving the
CAISO interconnection portion of the Re-MAT contract. The plant is
officially operating under the Re-MAT power purchase agreement.

Continuing his report, Mr. Johnson said on July 5, MWD
began delivering the remaining Quantification Settlement Agreement water
to CVWD at the Whitewater Spreading Basin. At a rate of 180 cfs, the
Whitewater Hydro should operate for the next 60 days with an anticipated
total production of 1,464 MWh. Under the previous. tariff, the amount of
money generated would have been approximately $38,000; with the Re-
MAT contract, the allocation should produce approximately $131,000, a
344% increase.

17541. Director Ewing announced he will be absent for the October 4 Directors

and November 1, 2016 Board meetings. Comments/Requests
There was discussion about the NWRA conference being held gfoGﬁm e b

the same week as the November 15 Board meeting. 15 Board Mitg.

17542. At 9:15 a.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session ciosed Session:

for the purpose of Conference with Legal Counsel, (A) Existing Litigation, ib%’giﬁ‘f;g éitfi‘g,‘;'g":t‘
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band , ) ’

of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al; (B) Existing

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 07/19/16



8691
Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), ACBCI C'“*‘t"d Session:
vs. County of Riverside, et al; (C) Existing Litigation, pursuant to gf’g,;i)sﬁng Litigation —
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. éCB(tin vs. Riverside

. « L. . . ount

Department of Interior; (D) Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government ¢ pyiging Litigation -
Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert DWA vs. U.S. Dept. of
Water Age.ncy; and (E) Real Property Negotiators, pursuant to Govement ]I:';_teEr;‘i’;ting Litigation -
Code Section 54956.8, Property-APN 502-560-038, Agency Negotiators: MSWD vs. DWA
Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steve L. Johnson, Assistant General Eicfg{:if;;pmy
Manager, Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite HOA, Under

Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition.

17543. At 9:44 am., President Cioffi reconvened the meeting into Reconvene-No
open session and announced there was no reportable action. Reportable Actlon

17544. In the absence of any further business, President Cioffi Adicurnment
adjourned the meeting at 9:45 a.m.

James Cioffi, President

ATTEST:

Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer

Desert Water Agency Reguiir Board Meeting Minutas 07/19/16



GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
AUGUST 2, 2016

On July 23 at approximately 5:00 p.m., stand-by responded to a hit 2 inch backflow at 2218
Toledo Ave. This service is used for irrigation and we were able to turn the angle stop off. Staff
made contact with the HOA to notify them what had happened and let them know that we could
make repairs to the backflow and be billed or they can make repairs themselves. The water loss
was metered and a police report was made.

Page 1




General Manager's Meetings and Activities

e e

Meetings:

7/15/16 Meeting Conference Call With Fiona Hutton — Contract Renewal

7/18/16 Meeting with MWD — Perris Dam Seepage Recovery Project

7/18/M16 Meeting with MWD & CVWD — Exchange Agreement Coordination Meeting
7/20-21/16 SWC Meetings Sacramento

7/121/16 Meeting with CVWD & MWD - Perris Dam Seepage/Sites Reservoir Exchange

7/22/16 Snow Creek Security Position — Interviews

7/26/16 Executive Committee Meeting

7/26/16 Staff Meeting — 218 preparation

7126/16 Meeting with RCFC&WCD — Murray Canyon Gaging Station and SGMA

7127116 Meeting Conference Call MWD, DWR, CVWD, DWA — Perris Dam Seepage Project
7/27/16 Meeting Conference Call DWA, CVWD, Site Reservoir JPA — Phase 1 Proposal to

Activities:

Agreement Extension, 100,000 AF Exchange Agreement Extension

participate

Perris Reservoir Seepage Water Supply Recovery — Finance Agreements, Water Rights,
Costs

Sites Reservoir Water Supply Opportunity — Phase 1 Proposal to Participation Form
E-Billing — Working out initial glitches

Outreach Talking Points - KMIR

USGS cooperative agreement — Murray Canyon Gaging Station

SWP Delta Charges — Rate Study

State Drinking Water Program Fees — Comment Letter to State Board

Well 6 and Well 32 Water Quality Remediation issues

Whitewater Ranch Water Service Agreement — Follow up to May 23 Meeting

Rate Study

Replenishment Assessment Charge - 218

Snow Creek Hydro SCE contract extension - ongoing

Whitewater Hydro SCE contract extension — Just completed and first delivery
SWP/DWA tax rates

State and Federal Contractors Water Authority and Delta Specific Project Committee
(Standing) _

Property Acquisition - New Mesquite HOA — Ongoing

MSWD Lawsuit - Ongoing

Snow Creek Security Job Opening

Snow Creek Security Weekly Meeting

Fiona Hutton Contract Renewal

CalWater Fix Policy Statement — Change of Point of Diversion Hearings

City of Palm Springs Paving Project — Valve Box Adjustment Invoice

e " R T e = : e e

Page 2



Minutes
Executive Committee Meeting
July 26, 2016

Directors Present: Jim Cioffi, Joe Stuart
Staff Present: Mark Krause, Martin Krieger, Steve Johnson

1. Discussion ltems

A. Review Agenda for August 2, 2016 Regular Board Meeting
The proposed agenda for the August 2, 2016 regular board meeting was reviewed.

2. Other - None

3. Adjourn




STAFF REPORT
TO
DESERT WATER AGENCY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AUGUST 2, 2016

RE: WATER USE VIOLATION — CIVIL PENALTY HEARINGS

Starting after the March 1st board meeting, staff began issuing water use violations
under the new ordinance; to date, more than 275 violations have been issued.
Recipients of the violations have 7 days to request a hearing in writing. Staff has
received three such requests for a hearing on the violations since the last hearing on
July 19. Three violations have hearings scheduled for today’s board meeting.

The following is a summary of the procedure for the hearings.

Staff has provided the Board with the correspondence for each of the violations
including photographic evidence. Photographs will also be projected during the hearing
to provide the board and customer a common point of reference for discussion.

Staff will introduce each violation with a summary of the event. After the introduction
the customer will be invited by the Board to speak concerning the violation. If the
recipient of the violation is not present or does not wish to speak, staff will read the
violation summary and submit the written petition into the record for board action.

Each petition will be discussed and voted on separately.

As a point of reference, staff has notified Agency customers concerning water
conservation regulations in several different ways:

Recent Notifications

Published the ordinance in The Public Record
Published the ordinance in the Agency Website
Social media outlets

KMIR, KESQ, KPCC, the Joey English Show

Desert Sun Valley Voice

Palm Desert Patch

Email to Palm Springs and Cathedral City Chambers
Emails to HOA in our contact list

Emails to high volume users

©xNoOr~WDNE

2016/mark/080216penaltyhearingstaffreport



Comprehensive Notifications — Since June 2015

Direct mail to all customers

Bill Inserts

Bill on envelope messaging
Billboards

Online advertising (KESQ)
Television advertising (Time Warner)
Social media

Several public presentations on TV

. Print and radio Interviews

10.DWA and CVWD websites

©oNOOA~®ODNE

2016/mark/080216penaltyhearingstaffreport



1. Palm Springs Villas Il, 701 Los Felices Circle

a. On Tuesday, May 24 at 11:01 a.m. a Desert Water Agency representative
observed water use violations at said address and reported them.
I.Irrigating between the restricted hours of 7 a.m. and 7 p.m.
ii. Irrigating on a restricted day
iii.  Runoff

b. Fine amount $200
i. Homeowners association
ii. Second violation

c. Reason for petition
I. Power outage



Palm Springs Villas I HOA May 24,2016
% PCM

27051 Towne Centre Dr #200

Foothill Ranch, CA 92610

RE: FINE ON ACCOUNT# N | os Felices Cir
Dear Valued Customer:

Due to a water use violation observed and documented by a Desert Water Agency representative on
Tuesday, May 24, 2016 at 11:01 am, you are being served with a complaint to impose a civil (monetary)
penalty.

You have 7 days to request, in writing, a hearing on this violation. If you do request a hearing, you will
need to come to the Agency and present information that refutes the alleged violation. If you do not
request a hearing within 7 days of this complaint, the civil penalty of $200.00 will be added onto your
water bill.

You were cited for:

e Outdoor irrigation shall be restricted to Mondays, Wednesdays and Fridays, before 7:00 a.m.
and after 7:00 p.m.

e Runoff such that water flows onto adjacent property, non-irrigated areas, private and public
walkways, roadways, parking lots, or structures is prohibited.

This is a violation of Desert Water Agency’s Ordinance No. 65. For a first violation within any 12-
month period, the civil penalty shall be $100 for a multi-family residential, commercial or institutional
establishment or $50 for a single-family residential customer.

For a second violation within any 12-month period, the civil penalty shall be $200 for a multi-family
residential, commercial or institutional establishment or $100 for a single-family residential customer.

For a third and each subsequent violation within any 12-month period, the civil penalty shall be $500 for
a multi-family residential, commercial or institutional establishment or $250 for a single-family
residential customer.

Failure to pay the civil penalty on your water bill may result in termination of water service. In addition,
the Agency staff shall be authorized to discontinue water service for any violation of the Ordinance.



If you have any additional questions, please contact us.

Thank you,

Ashley Metzger

Outreach & Conservation Manager

Desert Water Agency

On behalf of General Manager Mark Krause



B
=

™
= = [
ﬁ- ™ | : -
i ¥ "'-..-"’Jt : -
. AL : by -
':_.-'.-- 'f o rd ']
o ity d L )
A — -'Jf,--"';""-.' h
- a -
- r .y ' - "IIF.F‘_.,_“

k.'-.' ] - ‘.
5 L
[ = - - i
. ®
i -
g
! ;
=
-
[~ - - L ! i i - . e 5 F . 3
X k. = e v r = B - & - = = - i - - . .
""I:*'-"‘:'."!{.' _—r | 3 b =, A . v L) Tk ot | T il i . . T B . . i  ra .= > -
o . 3 . " :
g e :

S AT
Y, £ P 1':‘?'_'_.-;1. et
e -' . = *ﬁ"h_l. I-.lj!' h;';"'-r .

St T

.

.E.‘ffg‘i \

\|

o
IR
'l.l.

LY - =
S, I{" " . S
= k) : e 1 .
‘* J f r.‘ 3‘* -"-?, " 11‘ Ir L
: | PRl T od
il "-. L a o~ ‘l‘ .:'": - 'H'q‘-; E
ﬂﬁ - e L ¥ [y ..:ﬁ-.h e :

—
-
-
— -r.p.; P
i o
o
-}_ B
- == a
- --- ‘
. - .
; 4 L e
- ' — =
| N
- - 2 2
i e
- . '
= i~ = e - N
# . . S
iy - - .
¥ B v - # . 1 "“1
i - -, L
- ....".:Tnl" _‘.h =_ -
: - . . -‘ --.- '_‘.-;I .I.u.-
= . w 4
. = l
1‘(;'_' :
+ - -
= B :.
- - "
- - 4
-
-
”
I






; N
o
l._ X

,,. Eﬂjwq e E .... <~ o . .. ' | . t . L= . Ar 0 N IS i n 4 . : - ! . _.JT..J.__..._.

AT -

L . | . .-.
Y "‘.ﬂ.ll..-l_.'. .‘....-.1._.,, il
L JﬂU ol AR

X . " - .1..“......|._..._-.. -
L ! o .
N T
R s e
o | i . L

o
;
}

t §le

)

e B

LT

| {.
e -

] i"'«" o

i )

WM )

L LR TR R [
“1 Mw._-._._.um, q_-_...- N
r _J_I f..‘.#d!w 1“. ...h. ._ ﬁ
.| __._”..-....-...._“..._.__.. .. . &

W
- -.- f—




nT

£}
=
A

A
i
¥

iy
g

TN
"
-
-1-."-_
Ll L
Yol iy, =
1:;1
gl

- "y
1 —_—

e
o 5
i

: 1‘_:-

=,

& .
T ......___._ _.d..wu. ;

L W

el

e




Ms. Ashley Metzger
Outreach Manager

DESERT WATER AGENCY
1200 South Gene Autry Trail
Palm Springs, CA 92264

RE: Fine on Account | Los Felices Circle

Dear Ms. Metzger:

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Palm Springs Villas Il, | am writing to appeal the above
referenced fine due to a power outage which caused equipment failure.

In addition to this appeal, | would like information on the procedure for requesting an
exception to the current watering restrictions and allow us to water on more days. Our
community has more than 800 trees covering more than 30 acres and current restrictions do
not allow the time necessary to adequately cover the property. As a result, many trees are
dying. Our residents and community management have been vigilant in saving water, and our
usage is significantly lower than allowed.

Rebekah Ensley, our Community Manager, has the authority to work with Desert Water on
these and any other matters.

Professionally,

Rob Strickland

Secretary

Palm Springs Villas Il Homeowners Association
Board of Directors



2. Huntington Gardens, 100 South Sunrise

a. On Tuesday, June 28 at 3:39 p.m. a Desert Water Agency representative
observed water use violations at said address and reported them.
I.Irrigating between the restricted hours of 7 a.m. and 7 p.m.
ii. Irrigating on a restricted day
iii. Runoff from irrigation onto hardscape

b. Fine amount $200
i. Commercial

ii. Second violation

c. System malfunction



Huntington Gardens, LLC July 7, 2016
PO Box 3131
Huntington Beach, CA 92605

RE: FINE ON ACCOUNT# I 100 Sunrise Way S
Dear Valued Customer:

Due to a water use violation observed and documented by a Desert Water Agency representative on
Tuesday, June 28, 2016 at 3:39 pm, you are being served with a complaint to impose a civil (monetary)
penalty.

You have 7 days to request, in writing, a hearing on this violation. If you do request a hearing, you will
need to come to the Agency and present information that refutes the alleged violation. If you do not
request a hearing within 7 days of this complaint, the civil penalty of $200.00 will be added onto your
water bill.

You were cited for:

e Outdoor irrigation shall be restricted to Mondays, Wednesdays, Fridays, Saturdays &
Sundays before 7:00 a.m. and after 7:00 p.m.

** Saturdays and Sundays only allowed Through October 31, 2016**

e Runoff such that water flows onto adjacent property, non-irrigated areas, private and public
walkways, roadways, parking lots, or structures is prohibited.

This is a violation of Desert Water Agency’s Ordinance No. 65. For a first violation within any 12-
month period, the civil penalty shall be $100 for a multi-family residential, commercial or institutional
establishment or $50 for a single-family residential customer.

For a second violation within any 12-month period, the civil penalty shall be $200 for a multi-family
residential, commercial or institutional establishment or $100 for a single-family residential customer.

For a third and each subsequent violation within any 12-month period, the civil penalty shall be $500 for
a multi-family residential, commercial or institutional establishment or $250 for a single-family
residential customer.

Failure to pay the civil penalty on your water bill may result in termination of water service. In addition,
the Agency staff shall be authorized to discontinue water service for any violation of the Ordinance.



If you have any additional questions, please contact us.

Thank you,

Ashley Metzger

Outreach & Conservation Manager

Desert Water Agency

On behalf of General Manager Mark Krause






Hi Ashley:

Thank you very much for taking the time with me to discuss the penalty for the overrun water in the
shopping center mentioned above. | have discussed with our Landscaper that we should apply for the
Smart Controller System which is provided by the Water Department but unfortunately, we have a
battery operated system and this will not work with the Smart Controller. It is apparent that our system
malfunctioned and the sprinklers came on during unauthorized hours.

We are kindly requesting you to waive the Penalty of $200. We have contacted our Landscape company
and they are working on fixing this matter permanently to avoid this malfunction again.

Please let me know at your earliest convenience if you can waive the penalty for us. It will be greatly
appreciated.

Thank you again,

Youssef Ibrahim

President

CalBRE Lic # 00882003

Premier Commercial Brokerage
1420 Bristol Street North, Suite 230
Newport Beach, CA 92660

(949) 250-3333 ofc

(949) 250-4181 fax



3. Don Karchmer, 595 Camino Calidad

d. On Monday, July 11 at 11:50 a.m. a Desert Water Agency representative
observed water use violations at said address and reported them.
I.Irrigating between the restricted hours of 7 a.m. and 7 p.m.
ii. Runoff from irrigation onto hardscape

e. Fine amount $50
i. Single-family home
ii. First violation

f. Reason for petition
I. Extenuating circumstances















i

Al
i
”

4

(il T e

e T

Ve







Dear Mrs. Metzger,

It was nice visiting with you today. | sincerely appreciated you bringing the irrigation violation to my
attention. We own a second home at 595 Camino Calidad. | have had several condos in the past and this
is our first home. We have never had issues of keeping up with the water ordinances as the
condominium associations were responsible. Due to four parents with many health issues, my wife and
| are not able to get to the desert from Oklahoma as often as we would like. | have a gardener that
mows and takes care of my yard. | don’t have any idea as to programming or back up batteries etc. After
receiving this citation , as | happened to be in Palm Springs last Thursday to Sunday, | immediately
contacted him. He promised me he had been following rules of M-W-F and adding Saturday and Sunday
schedules per the regulations. He did not know how or why but said he would get out to check things
and correct any issues immediately. | received a text from him a few days ago that indicated the correct
days were all set correctly as well as the times before 7am and after 7pm but there was some problem
with timer or maybe it was the battery as | couldn’t completely understand it and haven’t spoken to
him. He said that it was all repaired and working perfectly now. | completely understand that the water
was running at 11:50am and clearly it was on a Monday. | am certainly at fault for the time being off . |
also hope you understand that | don’t voluntarily break the rules. It is often difficult to manage a
property from out of state as you are aware. | hope you and the board will give me some consideration
and understanding of the issue and accept my sincere apology. It seems that everyone might deserve
one chance of making an honest mistake.

Kindest regards
Don

DON KARCHMER

PRESIDENT

INTERNATIONAL PIPE & SUPPLY, LLC
3300 ALUMA VALLEY DRIVE
OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73121
DIRECT - 405-418-3017

MAIN - 405-478-4500

E-MAIL don@internationalpipe.com
WEBSITE www.internationalpipe.com



mailto:don@internationalpipe.comM
http://www.internationalpipe.com/

STAFF REPORT
TO
DESERT WATER AGENCY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AUGUST 2, 2016

RE: ANNUAL REVIEW OF RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING POLICY
AND GUIDELINES FOR AGENCY INVESTMENTS

Attached for the Board’s review are copies of Resolutions No. 886 (adopted
November 16, 2004) and No. 1007 (adopted July 7, 2009) which established the
policies and guidelines for Desert Water Agency investments. Government Code
recommends that the Agency’s investment policy be brought before the Board at
least annually for review and/or discussion.

After review of the Government Code and legal consultation, it was determined
that the Board need not re-adopt the investment policy annually if there are no
proposed changes. Thus, as there have been no changes or modifications in
Fiscal Year 2016/2017 to the Government Code 853600-53635 which affects the
Agency’s investments, Staff has no recommendations for revisions to the
Agency’s existing policy, and a new resolution is not necessary at this time.
Therefore, this policy is brought to the Board for the purpose of review only.



RESOLUTION NO. 886

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF DESERT WATER AGENCY
ESTABLISHING POLICY AND GUIDELINES

FOR INVESTMENT OF AGENCY FUNDS

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Desert Water Agency
(“Agency”) that the following is the Policy and Guidelines for investment of Agency Funds. The
Board of Directors hereby delegates the investment authority of the Agency to the General
Manager pursuant to this policy.

L. INTRODUCTION

This Agency investment policy is intended to provide guidelines and investment
practice policy for maximizing the efficiency of the Agency’s investment of funds and to protect
those funds while enhancing the Agency’s economic status. Government Code Section 53600.6
reads “The Legislature hereby finds that the solvency and creditworthiness of each individual
local agency can impact the solvency and creditworthiness of the state and other local agencies
within the state. Therefore, to protect the solvency and creditworthiness of the state and all of its
political subdivisions, the Legislature hereby declares that the deposit and investment of public
funds by local officials and local agencies is an issue of statewide concern”.

Thus, this policy is written so that all Agency investment practices and the writing
of this policy will be in compliance with Government Code Sections 53600 through 53686 as
modified by recent legislative enactments that apply to the Agency.

IL. SCOPE

This investment policy applies to all Agency funds, as pooled by enterprise
function as follows:
Operating Fund
General Fund
Wastewater Fund
Bond Fund
Any new fund created by the Board unless specifically exempted



I

OBJECTIVES

The first and primary objective of the Agency investment of public funds is to

safeguard investment principal; second, to maintain sufficient liquidity within the portfolio to

meet cash flow requirements; and third, to achieve a reasonable rate of return or yield on the

portfolio consistent with these objectives. The portfolio will be actively managed in a manner

that is responsive to the public trust and consistent with State law.

A.

Safety of Principal

Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the Agency. Each investment
transaction shall seek to preserve the principal of the portfolio, whether from
institutional default, broker-dealer default or erosion of market value of securities.
The Agency shall seek to preserve principal by mitigating two types of risk: credit
risk and market risk.

1. Credit Risk Credit risk, defined as the risk of loss due to failure of an
issuer of a security, shall be mitigated by investing in only very safe
institutions and by diversifying the portfolio so that the failure of any one
issuer would not unduly harm the Agency’s cash flow.

2. Market Risk The risk of market value fluctuations due to overall changes
in the general level of interest rates shall be mitigated by limiting the
maximum maturity of the Agency portfolio to five years. It is explicitly
recognized herein, however, that in a diversified portfolio, occasional
measured losses are inevitable, and must be considered within the context
of the overall investment return.

Liquidity
Liquidity is the second most important objective. Investments shall be made
whose maturity date is compatible with cash flow requirements and which can be

easily and rapidly converted into cash without substantial loss of value.

Return on Investment

Investments shall be undertaken to produce an acceptable rate of return after first
considering safety of principal and liquidity.



Iv. FIDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITY

Section 53600.3 of the Government Code declares each person, or governing body
authorized to make investment decisions on behalf of local agencies to be a trustee and therefore
a fiduciary subject to the prudent investor standard. The prudent investor standard is defined as:
“care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing, that a prudent
person acting in a like capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of
funds of a like character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity
needs of the agency.” These persons shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the
circumstances then prevailing when investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging,
selling, and managing funds. Section 53600.5 further stipulates that the primary objective of any
person investing public funds is to safeguard principal; secondly, to meet liquidity needs; and
lastly, to achieve a return or yield on invested funds.

Investment officers acting in accordance with the written guidelines of this
investment policy and exercising due diligence are relieved of personal responsibility for an
individual security’s credit risk or market price change, provided deviations from expectations of
the security are reported in a timely manner and appropriate action is taken to control adverse
developments.

V. AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS

Investments shall be restricted to those authorized in Government Code Sections
53601 and 53635 as amended and as may be further restricted by this policy statement. All
authorized investments are shown in Schedule | (attached) which defines the type of investments
authorized, maturity limitations, portfolio diversification, credit quality standards and purchase
restrictions that may apply.

VL PROHIBITED INVESTMENTS

Prohibited investments include securities not listed in Schedule I, as well as
inverse floaters, range notes, interest only strips that are derived from a pool of mortgages
(Collateralized Mortgage Obligations) nor in any derivative or other investment that could result
in zero interest accrual if held to maturity as outlined in Section 53601.6 of the Government
Code.



VIL REPORTING

Government Code requires quarterly summary reporting of the investment
portfolio, however, on a monthly basis the Board will be provided a report summarizing, by fund,
each investment by type, issuer, maturity date, par and dollar amount invested in all securities,
their market value, a statement denoting the ability of the Agency to meet its expenditure
requirements for the next six months, or provide an explanation as to why the expenditure
requirement cannot be met, and monthly statement of compliance of the investment portfolio
with the policy and guidelines for investment of Agency funds or the manner in which the
portfolio is not in compliance.

VIIL TRACKING AND EARLY SALE OF SECURITIES

All securities are to be purchased with the intent of holding them until maturity.
However, in an effort to minimize market and credit risks, securities may be sold prior to
maturity either at a profit or loss when economic circumstances, trend in short-term interest rates,
or a deterioration in credit-worthiness of the issuer warrants a sale of the securities to either
enhance overall portfolio yield or to minimize further erosion and loss of investment principal.
In measuring a profit or loss. The sale proceeds will be compared to the original book value of
the security plus cumulative interest earned on the security from the date of purchase to the date
of sale.

IX. QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS

The Agency shall transact business only with banks, savings and loans, and
registered investment securities broker/dealers. The purchase by the Agency of any investment
other than those purchased directly from the issuer, will be purchased either from an institution
licensed by the State as a broker/dealer, who is a member of the National Association of
Securities Dealers, or a member of a federally regulated securities exchange, a national or state
chartered bank, a federal or state association, or a brokerage firm designated as a primary
government dealer by the Federal Reserve Bank.

Should an investment manager be assigned to manage a portion of the Agency
invested funds, such manager shall have full discretion to invest the assigned funds within the
guidelines of this policy. The investment manager will provide monthly reports detailing all
asset information and performance results and maintain communication with the Agency at as
reasonable frequency as market conditions warrant. Major market condition changes will be
immediately called to the attention of the Agency. In all cases where an independent investment
manager is utilized, no funds will be released until a signed acknowledgment of the managers

willingness and commitment to abide by the guidelines of this policy is received by the Agency.

4



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this investment policy will be periodically
reviewed to ensure its compliance with any applicable legislative action and its consistency with
the overall objectives of safety, liquidity and investment return as well as financial and economic
trends. The foregoing investment policy not withstanding, the intent and purpose is to ensure
that investment of Agency funds is performed within the guidelines of relevant Government
Code sections and as may be further limited herein. This policy will be presented to the Board at
least annually for its review.

Resolution No. 843 adopted March 19, 2002 establishing investment guidelines is
hereby rescinded.

ADOPTED this 16" day of November, 2004.

0n S

Ronald E. Starrs
President

ATTEST:

7L J/ Jl

F. Gillar B?yd Jr

Secretary-

reasurer



DESERT WATER AGENCY
Schedule 1

AUTHORIZED MAX PORTFOLIO % WHHMWWMWWW%Zm MATURITY OWHWMHHW%%% b
INVESTMENTS (S&P/MOODY’S)
1. | U.S. Treasury notes, bills, bonds or NONE NONE Max. 5 years NONE
other certificates of indebtedness
2. | Notes, bonds, bills certificates NONE NONE Max. 5 years NONE
issued by agencies of the Federal
Government
3. Registered warrants, notes, bonds or NONE NONE Max. 7 years NONE
other certificates of indebtedness
issued by the State or local agencies
4. | Obligations issued by Desert Water NONE NONE NONE NONE
Agency as set forth in Government
Code, Section 53601(a)
5. | Bankers Acceptance among 100 40% maximum Maximum 30% with any Max. 270 days NONE
largest banks by size of deposits issuer
6. | Commercial paper of U.S. Corp 25% maximum* Max 10% with any issuer Max. 180 days “Prime” highest letter or
with total assets exceeding $500 numerical rating
mm
7. | State of California Local Agency NONE Set by State Treasurer Immediate Non-rated
Investment Fund Liquidity
8. | Negotiable CD’s issued by National 30% maximum NONE Max. 5 years NONE
or State chartered banks or a
licensed branch of a foreign bank
9. | Collateralized Certificates of $2,000,000 any one bank Gov. Code Sec. 53638 Max. 5 years NONE
Deposit
10. | Repurchase agreements with 102% NONE NONE Max. 1 year NONE
collateral
11. | Reverse Repurchase Agreements on NONE For temporary cash flow Max. 92 days NONE
U.S. Treasury & Fed. Agency needs only
Securities in portfolio
12. | Medium Term Notes of U.S. Corp. 30% maximum NONE Max. 5 years “A” or better
13. | Mutual Funds that invest in eligible 20% maximum Issuer registered with SEC Immediate Highest letter or numerical rating
securities meeting requirements of or 10% maximum with any Liquidity

California Government Code

one mutual fund

* [nereased from 15% to 25% in 2001




RESOLUTION NO. 1007

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE DESERT WATER AGENCY

AMENDING POLICY AND GUIDELINES FOR

INVESTMENT OF DESERT WATER AGENCY FUNDS

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has adopted Resolution No. 886 setting forth
this Agency Investment Policy and Guidelines as required by law; and

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to amend its Investment Policy with regard to the
amounts that may be invested in certificates of deposit, as allowed by law;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Desert
Water Agency that effective April 21, 2009, Schedule 1, Ttem No. 9 (Collateralized Certificates
of Deposit) of Resolution No. 886 be revised to read as follows:

Authorized Maximum Purchase Maturity | Credit Quality Ratings
Investments Portfolio % Restrictions (S&P/Moody’s)
Collateralized $20,000,000 Gov. Code Maximum | NONE

Certificates of Deposit | with one bank | Sec. 53638 5 years

ADOPTED this 7" day of July, 2009.

ATTEST:

Patricia G. Oygr, Sec:zét@y—Treasurer

Board of Directors
Desert Water Agency

-+

F. Thomas

Kieley II

Board of Directors
Desert Water Agency




DESERT WATER AGENCY

Schedule 1
PURCHASE CREDIT QUALITY RATINGS
AUTHORIZED INVESTM MAX PORTFOLIO % RESTRICTIONS MATURITY (S&P/MOODY’S)
1. | U.S. Treasury notes, bills, bonds or NONE NONE Max. 5 years NONE
other certificates of indebtedness
o | Notes, bonds, bills, certificates issued NONE NONE Max. 5 years NONE
by agencies of the Federal Government
3. Registered warrants, notes, bonds or NONE NONE Max. 7 years NONE
other certificates of indebtedness issued
by the State or local agencies
4 | Obligations issued by Desert Water NONE NONE NONE NONE
Agency as set forth in Government
Code, Section 53601(a)
5 | Bankers Acceptance among 100 largest 40% maximum Maximum 30% with any issuer | Max. 270 days NONE
banks by size of deposits
6. | Commercial paper of U.S. Corp with 25% maximum Max 10% with any issuer Max. 5 years “Prime” highest letter or
total assets exceeding $500 mm numerical rating
7 | State of California Local Agency NONE Set by State Treasurer Immediate Non-rated
Investment Fund Liquidity
g | Negotiable CD's issued by National or 30% maximum NONE Max. 5 years NONE
State chartered banks or a licensed
branch of a foreign bank
g | Collateralized Certificates of Deposit $20,000,000 any one bank Gov. Code Sec. 53638 Max. 5 years NONE
10. | Repurchase agreements with 102% NONE NONE Max. 1 year NONE
collateral
11. | Reverse Repurchase Agreements on NONE For temporary cash flow Max. 92 days NONE
U.S. Treasury & Fed. Agency Securities needs only
in portfolio
19, | Medium Term Notes of U.S. Corp. 30% maximum NONE Max. 5 years “A” or better
13. | Mutual Funds that invest in eligible 20% maximum Issuer registered with SEC or Immediate Highest letter or numerical rating
securities meeting requirements of 10% maximum with any one Liquidity

California Government Code

mutual fund

JILT/BOARD/Staff Reports/Krieger/07 07 09




BEST BEST & KRIEGER
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 7 - B

July 21, 2016
MEMORANDUM
TO: GENERAL MANAGER AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF DESERT WATER AGENCY
FROM: BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP
RE: JULY 20 AND JULY 21, 2016, MEETINGS OF THE BOARDS OF

DIRECTORS OF THE STATE WATER PROJECT CONTRACTORS
AUTHORITY AND THE STATE WATER CONTRACTORS, INC.

The July 20, 2016 meeting of the Board of Directors of the State Water Project
Contractors Authority was conducted at the Senator Hotel in downtown Sacramento. The
July 21, 2016, meeting of the Board of Directors of the State Water Contractors, Inc., was
conducted at the Tsakopoulos Library Galleria in downtown Sacramento. In between the two
Board meetings were committee meetings conducted in the Resources Building, involving

discussions and presentations that will also be referenced in this memo.

1. State Water Project Contractors Authority Board Meeting

One of the topics of discussion at the meeting of the State Water Project
Contractors Authority Board involved a decision by Kern County Water Agency to withdraw
from the Delta Specific Project Committee so as to avoid its share of the DSPC dues that are
levied each year to pay half of the general administrative budget of the State and Federal
Contractors Water Agency. A decision by Kern County Water Agency to withdraw from the
DSPC came from the KCWA Board of Directors in response to budgetary concerns resulting
from low allocations of imported water and also reduced oil production tax revenues within the
KCWA service area. The other members of the DSPC prefer to keep KCWA involved in the
discussion of Delta issues because of the experience and expertise that certain KCWA
representatives bring to the table. In addition, there is a conceptual problem with KCWA
escaping its share of the dues used to fund the State and Federal Contractors Water Agency,
since the joint powers agreement creating that agency makes KCWA a member independent of
the DSPC, and also gives KCWA representation on its board independent of the DSPC. The
other members of the DSPC discussed the resulting inequity. Metropolitan Water District

01358.00002\29103651.1



BEST BEST & KRIEGER
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

favored the concept of reducing every DSPC member’s dues to maintain the same
proportionality in contributions. However, that would result in greatly reduced revenue for the
SFCWA, jeopardizing its ability to function. Following significant discussion, the members of
the SWPCA Board favored the concept of keeping the dues assessments of all other members the
same, so that the only revenue lost to SFCWA would be the lost dues assessment to KCWA.
However, the matter will need to be discussed with Metropolitan Water District, whose
representative was absent from the SWPCA Board meeting, to see if Metropolitan is willing to
proceed on that basis for now, with additional discussion and decisions to occur subsequently to

address the resulting inequity.

The SWPCA Board also convened in closed session to discuss the continued
arrangement with Mary Lou Cotton to continue as the SWPCA General Manager. Mary Lou has
been serving as a contract General Manager, but the contract has been with Kennedy Jenks
Engineering, which has employed Mary Lou. Mary Lou is leaving the employment of Kennedy
Jenks effective June 29, 2016. Pursuant to the terms of the existing contract with Kennedy
Jenks, that departure automatically terminates the contract between SWPCA and Kennedy Jenks.
Following her departure from Kennedy Jenks, Mary Lou will continue to act as a “sole
proprietor” consultant. The SWPCA Board decided to continue to employ Mary Lou as its
General Manager for a payment of $5,000.00 per month, which is a 40% reduction from the
amount previously paid to Kennedy Jenks for her services. The employment contract with Mary
Lou is for a period of one year, until July 1, 2017. At that point, the SWPCA Board will again
examine the issue and determine whether it wishes to continue the same arrangement upon the

same terms.

2. Delta Smelt Resiliency Strateqy.

Following the SWPCA Board meeting, several committee meetings were
conducted at the Resources Building. One of the presentations included an explanation of the
proposed Delta Smelt Resiliency Strategy, offered to the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service in lieu of
its proposal to amend the existing biological opinion to require greater flows through the Delta.
A copy of the Delta Smelt Resiliency Strategy is attached to this memo for easy review. The key
proposed measures include aquatic weed control, North Delta food web adaptive management

projects, augmentation of outflows through the Delta resulting from the acquisition of additional

-2-
01358.00002\29103651.1



BEST BEST & KRIEGER
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

water supplies, reoperation of the Suisun Marsh salinity control gates, sediment supplementation
in the low salinity zone, spawning habitat augmentation, roaring river distribution system food
production, coordinated managed wetland flood and drain operations in Suisun Marsh,
adjustment of fish salvage operations so that Smelt predators salvaged at the fish screens are not
returned to the Delta where predation will continue, storm water discharge management
measures, a Rio Vista research station and fish technology center, near-term Delta Smelt habitat

restoration, and a restoration feasibility study for Frank’s Tract.

3. Director Mark Cowin Policy Briefing.

At the committee meetings in the Resources Building, the group also received a
visit from DWR Director Mark Cowin, who provided an interesting presentation regarding the
upcoming proceedings before the State Water Resources Control Board to change the point of
diversion to accommodate the proposed tunnel project. Hearings before the State Board were
scheduled to begin the following week. Cowin stated that his office had been working with
outside counsel as well as in-house counsel to prepare for the proceedings. He reminded the
group that the tunnel project includes three additional points of diversion on the Sacramento
River in the North Delta area. DWR has joined with the Bureau of Reclamation in submitting a
petition for a change in the existing permit to not only retain the existing points of diversion but
also add the three new points of diversion proposed for the tunnel project. Part one of the
hearing process will involve the presentation by petitioners of their “case in chief”, followed by
the cases of those protesting the proposed change in the points of diversion. Part two of the
proceedings will involve fish and wildlife impacts and flow criteria through the Delta. Motions
have already been filed to disqualify proposed experts, and responses were filed the day before
Mr. Cowin’s discussion with the committee. He said that the proceedings are scheduled to begin
on July 26, 2016, with opening statements by a number of parties. Resources Secretary Laird
will be providing a policy statement in favor of the project on behalf of the Resources Agency.
Following the policy statements, scheduled over two days (with a three-minute limit per
statement), the hearing will proceed with a project description, engineering testimony, testimony
regarding water operations, and testimony regarding modeling. All of this testimony will be
subject to cross-examination by opposing parties. The brief to be prepared by the parties

protesting the proposed change is due September 1, 2016. Then it will be necessary to wait for

-3-
01358.00002\29103651.1



BEST BEST & KRIEGER
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

completion of the biological opinion that must be prepared as part of the process. Cowin stated
that his position is that there should be no objection since the proposal is to continue satisfying
existing standards in the Delta. He said that a change in the plumbing should not matter so long
as the existing standards are protected. It was pointed out that the Delta Reform Act now
requires a re-evaluation of flow criteria, to accompany the proposed change in the points of

diversion.

4, SWC Action ltems.

At the SWC Board meeting, the Board undertook some action items at the
beginning of the meeting. One of those was an item approving an expenditure of $53,108.00 for
a contract with Montgomery Watson Harza to develop a modeling tool to forecast State Water
Project water supply allocations based upon changes in precipitation and hydrology. The
objective here is to get an earlier estimate of changes in allocation, in advance of monthly
announcements by DWR. The action items also included approval of an unbalanced exchange
arrangement between Santa Clara Valley Water District and Antelope Valley-East Kern Water
Agency, for up to 10,000 acre-feet of water in a “2 for 1” exchange. Another “2 for 1” exchange
arrangement was approved between the Central Coast Water Authority and the San Luis Obispo

County Flood Control and Water Conservation District.

6. Water Operations.

As of the date of the meeting, storage in Lake Oroville was at 2.56 million acre-
feet, which was 95% of average as of that date. Releases from Oroville were at 9,000 cfs.
Combined diversions from the Delta were at 4,800 cfs, including 4,000 cfs for the State Water
Project and 800 cfs for the Central Valley Project. Diversions from the Delta had been at the rate
of 7,100 cfs. However, a few days previously a decline in water quality in the Delta resulted in a
violation of the standard, which prompted DWR to immediately reduce diversions to only 700
cfs for a period of two days. Water quality quickly recovered, and when it did the combined
diversions were increased to 4,800 cfs. In the San Luis Reservoir, the Federal Contractors had
already encroached into their “dead pool” storage, placing them in a negative balance condition.
In effect, the CVP Contractors were simply out of water, and were borrowing from the SWP
share of storage. This had resulted from a decision to preserve the cold water pool in Lake

-4 -
01358.00002\29103651.1



BEST BEST & KRIEGER
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

Shasta, instead of releasing water from Shasta to satisfy Federal Contractor requirements,
because the Contractors wanted to save the cold water in Shasta for use later in the year.

Releases from Shasta were expected to increase by the end of July, however.

6. Revision in the Statement of Charges.

Dave Paulson from the State Water Project Analysis Office, reported that the July
1 revision of the statement of charges had been significantly decreased from the May estimate,
by $82 million. That prompted a lengthy discussion about efforts by DWR to refine its
budgeting process so as to more accurately project what the charges will be each year. It is a
complicated matter, but Paulson explained the efforts by DWR project managers to get a better

handle on their budgeting process.

7. Report on Energy Objectives.

SWC Assistant General Manager Tim Haines provided an interesting report
regarding energy objectives for the upcoming year. In 2015, approximately 65% of the energy
utilized by the State Water Project was free from greenhouse gas emissions. This was due
primarily to the fact that the State Water Project generates an enormous amount of clean energy
from its own hydro facilities. In addition, the State Water Project purchases some hydroelectric
power from other sources, as well as energy from other renewable sources. For years the cost of
energy to move water was stable and relatively low, but in recent years it has been increasing at
the rate of approximately 10% per year due to changes in the state-wide energy policy. A
proposal has been made to expand the Independent System Operator (*ISO”) to include five
western states. The purported objective is to give California more access to green energy,
including wind energy in Wyoming and other states. However, the State Water Project really
does not need access to more green energy. In order to provide that access, the transmission
system will need to be greatly expanded at significant expense, and therefore the State Water
Project would be stuck with significant additional expense without significant additional benefit.

The administration in California would like to achieve regionalization and will seek legislation to

01358.00002\29103651.1



BEST BEST & KRIEGER
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

expand the transmission system throughout the western United States. The Contractors intend to

oppose that proposal.

MICHAEL T. RIDDELL

01358.00002\29103651.1



Agenda ltem 4a

Trinity Storage
1.18 MAF
Shasta Storage
3.69 MAF
V Keoswick Release
10,500 cfs
o
A Orovllle Storage
® 2.56 MAF
E) Oroville
@ Roloases
3 » 9,000 cfs
°
F
- Folsom Storage
[) 0.58 MAF
- Nimbus
Reloase
5,000 cfs
Freeport
North Bay Aqueduct \ 18,978 cfs

Net Delta Outflow
13,100 cfs
New Melones Storage
0.60 MAF
L River
San Luls:
SWP 0.20 MA
CVP 005MAF
Total 025MAF
%
%
]
%
%
%
cr
Pyramid
Castakc
Siverwood Southern Reservoirs Storage
0.56 MAF
Porris

O&M,0SC

Clifton Court 1,700 cfs
Jones PP 800 cfs
N Vornalls 311cfs

-

State Water Contractors Board
Meeting
July 21, 2016

N

Data as of:
7/2012016




(0g 19quisydag - | 18q0)0Q) JeaA 193
130 1des bBny it punr  pAew  Ludy ey | qey

Luer 123 LAON LI20

.- 2

0'6l (Bny nay3 3ssup @ 3sauIp puz)LL6L-9261

e

N
N
L)

dioaid Ajiea 10Z-v10Z

U (8661-2Z61) oBeiany

§°75 dpoeid Areq jusLIng

uonejdioaid Jeap JojJep (B30

. i.l..l.lllull.ﬂ
Bcs 866 Emﬂ

. .I_\_l.ll\.\llulu
Siss (3senyam) £861-Z861

%611 :93eQ Sy} 10} abelaAay jo Jusdiag

910Z ‘0 AInr ‘xepu| uonels-g :uoneydioaid eusig YoN

A1D Bmu._m E:o_z oS

8SNoH dyjded - 49d \-v i
uoAue) an|g - WAG \v‘
SY ofjiaelsals - mmm\
¥eeuD ysnug - Wog ‘
found - O

IesBUliN - NI
weq ejseys - vHS

(sayoui) uoneydioaig Ajyuop/Ajreq eAnenwing



uonejdidald Jeap Jajep [eloL

(o€ Jaquiaydas - | 18q03J20) JeD A J9JeM

b0 Ldeg 1By e punr pAew  pudv JJemw  pqed  Luer [ 99Q | AON
e g
(Bny nuy} ysaup @ JsaLIp puz)L261-9.61 A
- — i = \\l\'l\l\
a)
0'6l —
dioaid Ajieq s10z-v102
80y (010z-1961) abexAy
0°0% :d193.d Ajeq jupsdng
: o
TS — !
f__. 1 ' .ﬂ. .,M_..w.
“ \/ . .._ _‘\.‘”J .k .,....1\.\-_..-» - .f.., ,‘ ’
v -
8661-2661 o

S¥ %Jod YyuoN -
sy \

(3senom) £861-2861

4N

sisuenbpeo}y a3jwssop - ASA

Ayo3oH Yy939H - HLH
so04] big sesanejen - 179

%10} :93eQ Siy} 10} abelaAy jo Juadiad

9102 ‘0Z AIn *xapuj uoneg-g :uopendioaid uinbeor ueg

\\\.

/

v

< N :
.
F N )
o >
4 ._
- N
/‘uﬂt

L 190

0L

Sl

114

n (= wn
o (3] N

(=}
<

© uv o
© 1B ®

wn
©

n
<
(sayoui) uogeydiosid Ajysuow/Ajieq aaneinwng

0L



uoneydioaid Jea J9jepA (€301

L1¥0  Ldes | Bny

(0¢ soquivydag - | 18q03J2Q) JeaA JojEM
Linr [ unp | ey I i< I ey I a4 } uep } 33@

7
e
(3seuq) dioaud Ajieq £261-9261 . \\
6'0L
G'clL e o, 7 Z
"d1saud Ajleq s10z-v102 7
/|
A

€6z L'sz:didaid Apeqg juaring

(0L0Z-1961) abesany
Z've e m.mm 1-L661 weq eyaqes) - gs

$309skd - 9Sd

€96 "aABuuds - A9S

(3senam) 6961-8961 WA USY - WSV

jsalod juel9 - JNO
Hd Yy2ied - vg

%06 :93eq SiY} 40} abeIdAY 4O JuadIad

I AON

e

9102 ‘0Z AInr ‘xapuj uope)g-g :uonendioeld uiseg asejnL

—

I 0

0l

Sl

0 o
N Y

Q
™

(=4
<

0 1
< (2]
(seyoui) uonepdioaid Alysuow/Ajreq saneinwngy

(=4
n

GG

09

'§9

0L



Reservoir Conditions

Ending At Midnight - July 27, 2016

CURRENT RESERVOIR CONDITIONS

LEGEND
3538 | Capacity 1 N
(TAR) Historical
3000 - Average
2448
2000 4
2000 % of Capacity | % of Historical
Average
1000 1000 - 77 ] C—
; . 0! o -
Trinity Lake Shasta Reservoir Lake Oroville Folsom Lake

79% | 109%

47% | 59% 68% | 92% 53%] 73%

2420
2000

2030

- .
Pl L1

Don Pedro Reservoir 425

73% | 95% ]«lzl»
o195% T

Exchequer Reservoir
52% | 83%

1000

.

New Melones
25% | 40%

2033

1000

pl_ |mmm—
San Luis Reservoir

10% | 20% 1”””]
520 ol |NEEEE
0 — I— - = Pine Flat Reservoir
Millerton Lake 36% | 68%

71%| 109%

a00

I e

Perris Lake ] Castaic Lake
36% | 46% 77% | 91%

Graph Updated 07/28/2016 07:45 AM



Delta Smelt Resiliency Strategy
July 2016




Contents

INEFOAUCTION .ottt e e e e e s e e e e e e e e e eeeeeas 1
O BTV . 1
CoNCEPLUAI MOAEIS ...oeeeieeeeeeeeee e e e e e e 2
Determining the Suite of Management ACtIONS ........covvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 6
[ o] oo F-T=To [Nl £ o ] 1= PSPPSRI 7
AQUALIC WEEA CONLIOL... ..ot e e e et s e e e e e e e e e et b e e e e eeaeaeanes 7
North Delta Food Web Adaptive Management Projects.........ccccceeeieeiiiiiiiiiiiie e, 7
OULFIOW AUGMENTALION ....cceiiiiiiiiiiiieeiee e 7
Reoperation of the Suisun Marsh Salinity Control Gates ...............ccccuvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinns 8
Sediment Supplementation in the Low Salinity ZONe .........cccoevieviiiiiiiiiiiii e, 8
Spawning Habitat AUGMENTAtION.............cooiiiiiiiiii 8
Roaring River Distribution System FOOd Production ....................eueeueiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiinnns 8
Coordinate Managed Wetland Flood and Drain Operations in Suisun Marsh................... 9
Adjust Fish Salvage Operations during Summer and Fall..............c....ooooiiiiiiiin e, 9
Stormwater Discharge Management ..........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 9
Rio Vista Research Station and Fish Technology Center ........ccccooeeiiiiiiiiiiiiii e, 9
Near-term Delta Smelt Habitat ReStOration..............ccooviiiiiiiiiiieieeiieeee e 10
Franks Tract Restoration Feasibility STUdY ... 10
YU 110110 = TP 11
Collaborative Science and Adaptive Management Program ............cccccuvvvvveiennnnnnnn. 11

i July 2016



Delta Smelt Resiliency Strategy

Introduction

The Delta Smelt Resiliency Strategy (Strategy) is a science-based document that has been prepared by
the State of California (State) to voluntarily address both immediate and near-term needs of Delta
Smelt, to promote their resiliency to drought conditions as well as future variations in habitat
conditions. The Strategy relies on the MAST Report and Conceptual Models (IEP 2015) to articulate a
suite of actions that can be implemented in the next few years that are intended to benefit Delta Smelt.
Although the feasibility and effectiveness of each action included in the Strategy requires further
exploration and study, the Strategy is an aggressive approach to implementing any actions that can be
implemented in the near term, can be implemented by the State with minimal involvement of other
entities, and have the potential to benefit Delta Smelt. State agencies that could implement this Strategy
include Department of Water Resources (DWR), Department of Fish and Wildlife (DFW), and Division of
Boating and Waterways (DBW). Several of the actions identified in this Strategy could also benefit other
species, and coordination across various resource management agencies as appropriate may allow for
benefits beyond Delta Smelt. All of the actions will be in compliance with applicable laws, including the
Federal Endangered Species Act, California Endangered Species Act, California Environmental Quality
Act, National Environmental Policy Act, and the Federal Clean Water Act. The Collaborative Science and
Adaptive Management Program (CSAMP) will be used to determine the appropriate research approach
to designing and assessing the outcomes of these management actions individually and synergistically.
Additionally, it is expected that the Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) would participate in the
implementation of this Strategy, including providing enhanced outflows in 2016, as described below.

Objective

The primary objective of this Strategy is to improve the status of Delta Smelt (e.g., generating a Delta
Smelt population growth rate >1). The relatively positive response of the Delta Smelt population in 2011
suggests that it retains some ability to respond to improved conditions (Interagency Ecological Program
2015). The specific goals to achieve the primary objective consist of the following.

Goal 1: Improved Delta Smelt vital rates, including:
e Higher growth rates.
e Higher fecundity levels.

Goal 2: Improved habitat conditions, including:

e Increased spawning and rearing habitat area

Improved habitat quality.

Increased food resources.

Higher turbidity.

Reduced levels of invasive species (e.g., aquatic weeds, nonnative predators).

1 July 2016



Delta Smelt Resiliency Strategy

e Reduced levels of harmful algal blooms.

Conceptual Models

The Strategy is based on detailed CMs developed by the MAST Team (Interagency Ecological Program
2015) that are consistent with several other Delta Smelt CMs developed to date (e.g., Miller 2011). The
CMs have a tiered structure with Delta Smelt performance (e.g., survival, growth, condition, fecundity)
determined by Habitat Attributes, Environmental Drivers, and Landscape Attributes. Additionally, there
are individual models for each Delta Smelt life history stage. Goal 1 of this Strategy is based on Tier 1,
Delta Smelt Performance, of these CMs, and Goal 2 is based on Tier 3, Habitat Attributes. The following
figures (45 through 49) are taken from the MAST report, and provide the basis for assessing
management actions relevant to improvement of Delta Smelt status in the near-term (Interagency
Ecological Program 2015).

2 July 2016



Delta Smelt Resiliency Strategy

July 2016



Delta Smelt Resiliency Strategy

July 2016



Delta Smelt Resiliency Strategy

July 2016



Delta Smelt Resiliency Strategy

Determining the Suite of Management Actions

Not all of the Environmental Drivers included in the CMs can be influenced through management
actions (Figures 45—49 above). For example, weather and air temperature cannot be controlled.
Similarly, water temperatures are driven by atmospheric temperatures and can only be affected by
operations for a limited amount of time and require substantial water to do so. Some drivers are not
well-understood or monitored and therefore have substantial uncertainty associated with management
actions intended to address them. However, this Strategy is meant to address as many Environmental
Drivers as possible to achieve the objective and goals described above, with acknowledgement that
some management actions may not yield expected results. The linkage to the CM and objectives are
articulated for all management actions.

6 July 2016



Delta Smelt Resiliency Strategy

Proposed Actions

The following lists, in no particular order, the proposed management actions meant to address as many
Environmental Drivers and Habitat Attributes in the MAST CMs as possible. A brief summary of each
management action is provided below, and the life stages, Environmental Drivers, and Habitat
Attributes affected are also noted.

Aquatic Weed Control

Linkage to Conceptual Models: This management action would benefit all life stages and the
Environmental Drivers affected would include Turbidity and Predators.

Summary of Action: DWR will coordinate with DBW to increase the treatment of aquatic weeds in the
Delta to ensure the Strategy would provide maximum benefits to Delta Smelt habitat. The action will
take place during 2017-2018 in locations permitted by U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) and
determined to be beneficial to Delta Smelt. In addition to Franks Tract, likely treatment areas would
include Sherman Lake, Decker Island, and Cache Slough Complex.

North Delta Food Web Adaptive Management Projects

Linkage to Conceptual Models: This management action would benefit juvenile and sub-adult life
stages and the Habitat Attributes that would be affected include Food Availability and Quality.

Summary of Action: DWR will augment flow in the Yolo Bypass by closing Knights Landing Outfall Gates
and route water from Colusa Basin into Yolo Bypass in July 2016 and in July and/or September in 2017
and 2018 to promote food production and export into areas where Delta Smelt are known to occur.
Food web enhancement flows will also be considered for additional months in ways that will not conflict
with agricultural and waterfowl management actions based on the availability of water to augment
flows in the Yolo Bypass. DWR will also explore options for increasing outflow from the Yolo Bypass
during the spring.

Outflow Augmentation

Linkage to Conceptual Models: The CMs suggest that seasonally augmented outflows could affect two
Environmental Drivers: Turbidity and Hydrology. Habitat Attributes that could be affected include
Predation Risk, Harmful Algal Blooms, and Food Availability and Quality. This management action would
also test the recent hypothesis that the location of the Low Salinity Zone (LSZ) is important at times of
year besides fall. The extent to which these Environmental Drivers and Habitat Attributes can be
positively affected through outflow augmentation will be the subject of a targeted research action.

Summary of Action: This adaptive management effort will occur in the spring and summer of 2017 and
2018. In 2016, Reclamation will provide 85 thousand acre-feet (TAF) to 200TAF additional outflow above
what is required under D-1641 for release in the summer. In the spring and summer of 2017 and 2018,
DWR and/or Reclamation will provide up to an additional 250TAF of outflow above D-1641
requirements. A variety of methods may be used to augment outflow, including transfers from willing
sellers, changes in export or other CVP/SWP Delta operations, and/or storage releases. These flows
must be consistent with the 2009 salmon biological opinion as determined by NMFS and CDFW.

7 July 2016



Delta Smelt Resiliency Strategy

Reoperation of the Suisun Marsh Salinity Control Gates

Linkage to Conceptual Models: This management action is proposed as an alternative to the Summer
Outflow Augmentation action described above and would benefit juvenile and sub-adult life stages. The
primary Habitat Attribute that would be affected is Food Availability.

Summary of Action: DWR will operate the Suisun Marsh Salinity Control Gates to reduce salinity in the
Suisun Marsh during summer months. This management action may attract Delta Smelt into the high-
quality Suisun Marsh habitat and reduce their use of the less food-rich Suisun Bay habitat. This
management action would need to be monitored closely to ensure it does not result in unintended
salinity changes in Suisun Bay and the confluence area.

Sediment Supplementation in the Low Salinity Zone

Linkage to Conceptual Models: This management action would benefit all life stages and the primary
Environmental Driver that would be affected is Turbidity.

Summary of Action: DWR will assess the feasibility of sediment supplementation in the LSZ to promote
turbidity corresponding to outflow actions (described above for Outflow Augmentation). If this
management action is determined to be feasible, DWR will implement sediment supplementation
activities in 2017 and 2018 as a pilot project to evaluate its effectiveness and its potential as a long-term
management program.

Spawning Habitat Augmentation

Linkage to Conceptual Models: The CMs do not include spawning substrates; however, spawning
substrate is a component of the USFWS-designated critical habitat for Delta Smelt. Therefore, this
management action could benefit spawning adults and eggs.

Summary of Action: DWR will evaluate the availability of suitable spawning substrates in Suisun Marsh
and Cache Slough in 2016. If suitable substrate is determined to be absent or limiting, DWR will
introduce sand and other likely-favored spawning substrates in key areas of Suisun Marsh and Cache
Slough (i.e., where pre-spawning adults have been found in higher densities than in other parts of the
estuary). This management action will be monitored to assess its effectiveness.

Roaring River Distribution System Food Production

Linkage to Conceptual Models: This management action would benefits juvenile and sub-adult life
stages and the primary Environmental Driver that would be affected is Food Production.

Summary of Action: DWR will install drain gates on the western end of the Roaring River Distribution
System that can be used for most months of the year to drain food-rich water from the canal into Grizzly
Bay to augment Delta Smelt food supplies in that area. This area is also adjacent to the Tule Red
Restoration Project, which is proposed to begin construction in 2016 as discussed below for Near-term
Delta Smelt Habitat Restoration. In addition to new drain gates, DWR will repair of the existing outfall
gate/water control structure on Montezuma Slough which, in addition to a new gate onto Grizzly Bay,
would further increase operational flexibility to maximize export of productivity to adjacent open water
habitat used by Delta Smelt.

8 July 2016



Delta Smelt Resiliency Strategy

Coordinate Managed Wetland Flood and Drain Operations in Suisun Marsh

Linkage to Conceptual Models: This management action would benefit all life stages and the primary
Environmental Driver that would be affected is Contaminants and the Habitat Attribute that would be
affected in Food.

Summary of Action: Based on the findings of a current study on Joice Island, DWR will coordinate with
the Suisun Resource Conservation District and DFW to develop a management plan for managed
wetland flood and drain operations that can promote food export from the managed wetlands to
adjacent tidal sloughs and bays.

Adjust Fish Salvage Operations during Summer and Fall

Linkage to Conceptual Models: This management action would benefit all life stages and the primary
Environmental Driver that would be affected is Predation.

Summary of Action: DWR and Reclamation will adjust summer salvage operations beginning in 2016 so
that non-native salvaged fish will not be returned to the Delta. Collection and counting will still occur.
Normal fish salvage operations will resume when monitoring indicates that juvenile Chinook salmon and
steelhead are entering the Delta in the fall. In addition, USFWS will coordinate with DFW on an outreach
program to ensure recreational anglers understand the benefit of catch, without release, of fish that
prey on Delta Smelt.

Stormwater Discharge Management

Linkage to Conceptual Models: This management action would benefit all life stages. The Environmental
Driver that would be affected is Contaminant Loading and the Habitat Attribute that would be affected
is Toxicity.

Summary of Action: The State will provide funding to entities such as the Sacramento Stormwater
Quality Partnership, and/or counties and cities whose stormwater discharges to Delta waterways under
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System stormwater
permits. The funding would enable the entities to implement additional actions to reduce contaminant
loading in the Delta.

Rio Vista Research Station and Fish Technology Center

Linkage to Conceptual Models: This management plan would benefit all life stages. Although no specific
Environmental Drivers would be affected, this management action would help guard the Delta Smelt
population (Tier 1 in the MAST CM) against extinction by creating an additional refuge population.

Summary of Action: A new Delta field station in Rio Vista that will consolidate existing IEP Delta Smelt
monitoring and research activities, and will include a new Fish Technology Center (FTC) is expected to be
completed in 2019. The FTC will be designed to house a refuge population for Delta Smelt to be used for
species conservation and research. Until construction, the primary activity will be to conduct technical
studies to identify the potential uses of the refuge population as part of a conservation strategy for
Delta Smelt. This information is a key data gap for a future management plan for a potential future
conservation hatchery.

9 July 2016



Delta Smelt Resiliency Strategy

Near-term Delta Smelt Habitat Restoration

Linkage to Conceptual Models: This management action would benefit all life stages. The primary
Environmental Drivers affected is Food Production and Predators, which affects two Habitat Attributes,
Food Availability/Visibility and Predation Risk.

Summary of Action: DWR and other state agencies are planning restoration projects that are likely to
benefit Delta Smelt, and are very close to breaking ground (Table 1). Construction of each project will
take 14 years. Details on the timing and characteristics can be found at
http://resources.ca.gov/ecorestore. In addition to these projects, the State’s EcoRestore program, which
includes the projects listed in Table 1, has committed to implementing restoration of 9,000 acres of
inter-tidal wetland habitat in the Delta and Suisun Marsh by the end of 2018 and to initiate of work to
enhance fish habitat in the Yolo Bypass.

Table 1. Summary of Near-Term (2016-2019) Tidal Restoration Actions that Will Benefit
Delta Smelt

Restoration Site Tidal Wetland (acres) Construction Begins
Tule Red 600 2016

Dutch Slough 660 2016

Hill Slough 750 2016

Decker Island 140 2017

Lower Yolo Ranch 1,600 2017

Bradmoor Island 280 2018

Prospect Island 1,500 2019

TOTAL 5,530

Franks Tract Restoration Feasibility Study

Linkage to Conceptual Models: This management action would benefit all life stages. The primary
Environmental Driver that would be affected is Food Production and Predators, which would affect two
Habitat Attributes, Food Availability/Visibility and Predation Risk.

Summary of Action: Franks Tract is located near the confluence of the Sacramento and San Joaquin
Rivers, and could support LSZ habitat. DFW will conduct a conceptual plan and feasibility study for
restoring Franks Tract to reduce invasive aquatic weeds, reduce predation on Delta Smelt, increase
turbidity, and improve food webs. The conceptual plan will be completed by the spring of 2017. If this
management action is found to be feasible, the restoration of Franks Tract could begin as early as 2018.

10 July 2016


http://resources.ca.gov/ecorestore

Delta Smelt Resiliency Strategy

Summary

The Strategy proposes a suite of near-term management actions that would address predation,
turbidity, food availability and quality. Strategy implementation would also provide outflow
augmentation that may interact with other actions to improve conditions such as contaminant
exposure, food availability and quality, water temperatures, and salinity. The extent to which these
Environmental Drivers and Habitat Attributes can be positively affected through outflow augmentation
will be the subject of a targeted research program, which will be coordinated through the CSAMP. Other
activities implemented by the Federal government, non-governmental organizations, and/or other
stakeholders may complement the State’s proposed management actions identified in this Strategy.
Additionally, the State may opt to include additional management actions in this strategy on the basis of
scientific information gleaned from implementation of this near-term Strategy.

Collaborative Science and Adaptive Management Program

The CSAMP will be used to determine the appropriate research approach to designing and assessing the
outcomes of these management actions individually and synergistically. The CSAMP forum will oversee
implementation and the synthesis of the results to inform subsequent management actions.

References Cited

Interagency Ecological Program. 2015. An updated conceptual model of Delta Smelt biology: our
evolving understanding of an estuarine fish. Available:
http://www.water.ca.gov/iep/docs/Delta_Smelt MAST Synthesis Report January%202015.pdf
Accessed: July 7, 2016.

Miller, W.J. 2011. Revisiting assumptions that underlie estimates of proportional entrainment of delta
smelt by State and federal water diversions from the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta. San
Francisco Estuary and Watershed Science, 9(1). Available: http://escholarsh
ip.ucop.edu/uc/item/5941x1h8.Miller 2011. Accessed: July 7, 2016

11 July 2016


http://www.water.ca.gov/iep/docs/Delta_Smelt_MAST_Synthesis_Report_January%202015.pdf
http://escholarsh/

STAFF REPORT
TO
DESERT WATER AGENCY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AUGUST 2, 2016

RE: LAKE PERRIS SEISMIC REMEDIATION UPDATE

The Department of Water Resources (DWR), Operations Maintenance and Engineering
Committee have issued their Perris Dam Seismic remediation of embankment contract
update for June 2016. The highlights of the attached report are 70% of the work has
been completed with 58% of the time elapsed. Thus far the contractor has completed
the cement deep scil mixing (CDSM), the borrow pit material for the berm has been
cleared and potholed and the new drain at the toe of the berm has been installed. The
contractor continues to work on the following: the placement of material for the
compacted berm, blasting of the left abutment haul road, filter rock processing for drain
piping, placement of filter material for drain piping and the removal of the old drain pipe
at the toe of the dam.

To date there have been $802,614 (no change since update in April 2016) in change
orders submitted. This amounts to a little more than 1% of the original contract. This
amount does not include anticipated change orders resulting from work being performed
on the left abutment haul road nor the quarry rock processing plant. It is still anticipated
that the contractor will be submitting change orders for a change of site conditions for
both of these items. Construction of the toe drain is behind schedule due to delays in
the left abutment haul road construction and process of filter material.



: State Water Contractors - OME Committee Meeting

/ July 7, 2016

Perris Dam — Seismic Remediation of Embankment — Contract Update
Specification 14-03 Contract No. C51484

Contract Summary

Notice To Begin Work: August 20, 2014

Contract Completion: November 20, 2017

Pulice Construction: $75,538,626

Engineers Estimate: $83,000,000

Current Update: 70% of Work Completed, 58% Time Elapsed

R T p— I

Completed Work _.
Cement Deep Soil Mixing Complete &=
Borrow Source Cleared and Potholed§,:
New Toe-Drain Line Pipe 7

Safe otz gk’ (Y ‘ S

= . 's"é-' .
5 A BV U e L,
DWR and Contractor continue to review left abutment safety hazard concerns.
Contractor has successfully completed over 188 work days without a lost-time

incident. 1 lost-time incident on project.

On-Going Work

Placement of Compacted Berm (R&R area); Left Abutment Road Blasting; Rock
Processing; Placement of filter, and drain material for New Toe-Drain Line; R&R
Old Toe-Drain pipe, filter, drain material.

Schedule

Construction sequencing was modified to allow CDSM construction before
construction of the toe drain. Toe drain requires filter and drain material from
quarry/processing via the left abutment road (both of which are behind schedule).

Construction Contract Challenges and Potential iImpacts

Left Abutment Access Road Blasting

Contractor has resumed work on blasting and excavation of the road near the
tower after placement of berm/ramp. DWR and the contractor have revised the
plan and schedule to complete the left abutment blasting and excavation,
liquidated damages are being assed for the LAAR milestone.

http://www.workzonecam.com/projects/pulice/perrisdam



-
_—

SWC “; State Water Contractors - OME Committee Meeting
b 4 July 7, 2016
Perris Dam — Seismic Remediation of Embankment — Contract Update
Specification 14-03 Contract No. C51484

Quarry Rock Processing

Contractor is processing drain and filter in phase 2 production. The filter and
drain material are required for the completion of the toe drains and blanket drain.
Contractor continues to claim differing site condition as the cause of material
processing problems.

Other Challenges
Weather and Heat

Contractor Pay Request

Month Pay Request Total Contract Paid Estimatec! Days*/Cost
to Date Ahead/Behind Schedule*
October $3,026,114 $16,799,901 -90 days/ -$12M
November $2,696,968 $19,496,869 -120 days/ -$10M

December $4,189,249 $23,686,119 -150 days/ -$8M
January $4,287,782 $27,973,901 -150 days/ -$5M
February $5,851,994 $33,825,895 -180 days/ -$1M
March $6,777,338 $40,603,233 -210 days/ +$3M
April $6,717,005 $47,320,237 -240 days/ +$7M
May $1,228,023 $48,548,260 -270 days/ +$6M
June $2,300,000 $50,848,260 -300 days/ +$6M

* Days are based on Intermediate Milestone for Left Abutment Access Road. Costs are based on a uniform monthly
payment for the contract duration.

Contractor Executed Change Orders

Change - Additional
Order Description Date Amount Time (Days)
1-10 See May Update - $216,748 0
Differing Site, Working Limits, Fiber Cable
Adjustments Relocation, Shim Plates, Locate upper limit of Pending $585,866 0
Zone 4 material, and Modifying CDSM Cells
Total Adjustments and CCO $802,614 0

http://www.workzonecam.com/projects/pulice/perrisdam



DATE

07/02/16

07/02/16

07/04/16
07/07/16

07/10/16

0711216

0711316

07/14/16

07/14/16

07117116

07/21/16

07/25116

07/27/16

PACKET

FPAGE

2.3

4-7

10-11

12

1315

16-17

18
19

20-26

27-28

29

DESERT WATER AGENCY
MEDIA INFORMATION

JULY 2016

MEDIA SOURCE

THE DESERT SUN

THE DESERT SUN

THE DESERT SUN
LA TIMES

PRESS ENTERPRISE

THE PUBLIC RECORD

LA TIMES

THE DESERT SUN

PRESS ENTERPRISE

PRESS ENTERPRISE

THE DESERT SUN

LA TIMES

THE DESERT SUN

ARTICLE

Desert Water Agency Has Longterm
Conservation Strategy

Water Agencies Shortsighted With Zero
Conservation Goal

More Water Data Needed
Fighting Off A Western Water War

Experts Say State Should Stay Stingy With
Water

Indio Water Authority Expands Outdoor
Watering Policy

Groups’ Water-train Initiative Loses Its
Flow

Agency’s Decision Could Expand
Farmland In The Desert

Desert Water Transfer Plan Moves Forward

Corona Activates New Water Guidelines

Regulators Ordered Californians To Cut
Use 25%. In the Desert, Golf Courses Cut
Back 8%

Judge: Yorba Linda Residents Can’t Use A
Referendum To Void Water Rate Hikes

Water Tunnels Pitched To Regulators



The Desert Sun 1

Desert Water Agency has longterm conservation strategy

Jim Cioffi, Special to The Desert Sun, July 2, 2016

Californians have made a giant leap forward in water conservation. In just one year, our community has
achieved an unprecedented 27 percent reduction in water use — this is more than 3 billion gallons of water in
our service area alone. Just last month as headlines on easing of mandatory restrictions appeared, Desert
Water Agency customers reduced water use by 39 percent. The statewide drought isn't yet over. The State
Water Resources Board required agencies to project ancther three years of drought conditions. Our standards
in the valley have been relaxed due to our healthy groundwater supply, bolstered by years of long-term
planning.

For the first time ever, the State Water Resources Board's mandatory restrictions factored in local water supply
and drought-resilience.

The water agencies and our customers here will continue to use water wisely because it is the right (and
smart) thing to do. The state’s emergency regulation helped reinforce the importance of using water wisely but
just because we're no longer forced to save, does not mean the savings will stop. Local agencies have been
making advances for years, and we will continue to make them. DWA has set its own 10-13
percent conservation target for customers. This range is based on attaining long-term sustainability based on
our supplies. We are confident that our customers will meet this target.

From funding our groundwater replenishment facilities to completing major landscape conversion projects, our
customers have made large investments in the management of a healthy groundwater basin. Progressive
investments and efficient water use need to remain part of our plan. We want to leave our basin in good health
for generations to come.

As our customers continue to do their part — using water wisely day in and out — DWA is also working to make
our system more efficient and protect it for the future. As you watch fireworks with your family and friends this
Independence Day weekend, remember that some of our pipelines were in place before the Star-Spangled
Banner became our national anthem in 1931. Our system needs an upgrade, not only to reduce water wasted
by leaks, but to remain reliable. The older pipelines are smaller and less durable than the pipelines we install
today. The most vulnerable pipelines only make up 20 percent of our system, but are responsible for more than
90 percent of the leaks in our system.

Replacing old and outdated infrastructure will help us save millions of gallons each year. Our agency has
committed to a proactive replacement program that will target the unlined steel pipelines, reduce water lost to
leaks, and cut staffing and material costs for emergency repairs. DWA plans to replace more than a mile of
pipeline every year, which will require substantial investments. By taking this proactive approach to system
maintenance DWA will save water, and cut expenses over the long term. As a not-for-profit public agency, our
customers guide every decision we make.

It is for that reason and others that conservation is here to stay in our valley. Water conservation is becoming
more of a way of life here. DWA and our customers have achieved great strides in becoming more efficient,
and we need to continue this commitment together. For more information on saving water and DWA rebates,
visit www.dwa.org.

Jim Cioffi is Desert Water Agency's board president. Email him at jcioffi@dwa.org.



The Desert Sun 2

Water agencies shortsighted with zero conservation goal
The Desert Sun Editorial Beard, July 2, 2016

Coachella Valiey water agencies are sending the wrong message to customers who've spent the last year
struggling to conserve this most precious resource.

All six of the area’'s water suppliers have told state officials they’re officially shooting for a zero percent
conservation rate compared to 2013, the benchmark year the state has been using to rate progress on that
front.

You read that right — a “zero percent” conservation target. The big donut. Zilch. Nada.

Though this is disappointing, no one should be surprised. The valley's water districts have argued all along that
the desert region — note the word “desert” — is uniquely positioned to handie long dry spells like the current
drought that has ravaged California, which is now in its fifth year.

The leaders of these agencies have long argued that our vast aquifer and the agreements that bring in
Colorado River water give the Coachella Valley more than adequate cushion if Mother Nature continues to
hold back the rain and snow.

Indeed, foliowing the nearly “normal” precipitation of the recent El Nino winter, California Gov. Jerry Brown
ordered the State Water Resources Board to allow local districts across the state to decide for themselves
what conservation efforts are needed in their areas. Max Gomberg, the state board's climate and conservation
manager, told The Desert Sun’'s Sammy Roth that he expected more than haif of California’s 400-plus water
agencies to set a zero conservation target under the new policy. Agencies are now allowed to determine
themselves just how much conservation is needed to guarantee their supplies assuming three more drought
years.

The Desert Sun Editorial Board had urged the state to keep up the pressure for conservation, arguing in a May
1 Qur Voice editorial that while it should take into consideration special factors in the desert water equation,
“... the ultimate decision made must continue to build on the progress seen to date in changing our water
culture, especially in the desert.”

There have been promising signs of this needed change in how we view water.

Legions of desert residents have been swapping thirsty, nonnative turf landscapes for more appropriate, water-
saving schemes. In May, the valley's water agencies saw some of the best figures yet for conservation, with
Desert Water Agency reporting a 39 percent reduction from May 2013 and Myoma Dunes Mutual Water
Company, which has among the highest per capita use in the state, notching a 37.6 percent cut. Even
Coachella Valley Water District, the largest in the region, saw its customers cut back 28.8 percent, though it
missed its original cut target of 32 percent.

Though local officials have consistently said our aquifer offers plenty of cushion, especially under such a
‘three-year” rule, we've been drawing out more water than has been going back in. That, obviously, cannot
continue, and one way to have helped bring that back intc balance would have been through continued
mandated cuts in use.

For now it appears we'll have to rely on the good conscience of those in the desert community to continue on
the path we've taken. It could be seen as a good sign that the overall reduction of about 25 percent seen
across the desert came under a fairly weak mandate regime; weak, we say, because the water board issued
only four fines statewide to agencies not meeting the mandate. The two issued here, against Indio Water
Authority and CVWD, were refunded with the caveat that the money be used for conservation efforts.

CVWD and DWA also say that despite the zero targets, they continue to encourage conservation.



3
CVWD -- which approved a new rate structure that took effect July 1 that is expected to raise bills by more than
20 percent even for those who can remain within tightened water budgets — is eying a 20 percent overall usage
cut by 2020. DWA says it expects its clients to continue with usage cuts in the 10 percent to 13 percent range..

The promising sighs we've seen over the past year show why a continued state conservation mandate — or
tocal policies absent such an order from Sacramento — would have been the wiser thing to do. As noted by the
Pacific Institute’s Peter Gleick, Gov. Brown's original 2014 call for a 20 percent voluntary cutback by urban
users was a spectacular failure.

"There's no district in California that is doing enough to save water," Gleick told The Desert Sun’s Roth. "The
resources in the Coachella Valley are not adequate, and the potential to save more water is significant.”

While there likely was room for less than a 25 percent cut — even here in the desert — the shortsighted notion of
a “zero” target threatens to turn initial signs that some are sliding back to old bad habits into an avalanche. An
actual, solid number — perhaps DWA's 10-13 percent “goal” — would provide the foundation for continuing
needed changes in how we view and live with water here. Changing the culture is the only way to ensure the
desert community can continue to thrive and grow.

After all, here in the Coachella Valley and across California we'll aiways been looking toward the next drought.



< The Desert Sun 4

More Water Data Needed

Scientists call for more research about aquifers
lan James, The Desert , July 4, 2016

The more scientists study California’s declining supplies of groundwater, the more they're emphasizing one
basic point: We still don't know nearly enough about the water in our aquifers, and we need a lot more data.

That was one of the main takeaways in separate research by two groups of Stanford researchers last week.

In one study, scientists used data from thousands of oil and gas wells to examine water deep beneath the
Central Valley and calculated there are vast quantities of groundwater more than 1,000 feet underground — the
maximum depth considered in previous estimates. Their research underscored the fact that no one is
monitoring deep aquifers despite the threat of potential contamination by the cil and gas industry.

In another report, researchers surveyed a group of water managers across California and found many
agencies lack the data they need to adequately make decisions about groundwater.

For one thing, most areas of the state don’t have meters on all of the wells that are running, “so the agencies
that are trying to manage that groundwater have no idea how much groundwater is actually being pumped out
of them,” said Tara Moran, a researcher who leads the sustainable groundwater program as part of Stanford
University’s Water in the West program.

She said her group found in their survey that “a lot of data are either missing or highly uncertain,” and that the
information collected often isn't shared between agencies to enable decision-making.

The results show just how far California has to go as water managers take steps to follow through on the
landmark 2014 law that aims to bring about sustainable management of groundwater.

And while the |latest research reveals major gaps in groundwater data, other efforts to boost statewide controls
on well-drilling have recently foundered. A bill that would have clamped down by preohibiting the drilling of most
new welis in California’s most water-stressed areas, encountered strong opposition and died in the Legislature
last week.

With aquifers under enormous strains during California’s five-year drought, scientists have been pointing to a
need for better estimates of the amounts of water that can economically be pumped, as well as more
information about water quality, salinity, natural recharge and the amounts being extracted, among other
variables.

Moran said the new research on deep groundwater, in which she didn’t participate, shows how information
from oil and gas wells can be valuable in helping to fill in some of the blanks. She said the study also highlights
the considerable uncertainty that remains.

“We really don’t know enough about our groundwater systems,” Moran said.

Water deep underground

To study California’s deep reserves of groundwater, Stanford scientists Mary Kang and Robert Jackson looked
to the main industry that regularly cores thousands of feet into the Earth: oil and natural gas. They analyzed
information from 360 oil and gas fields across eight counties, including depth data for more than 34,000 cil and
gas welis.



5
In their research, which was published in the Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences, they
expanded on previous estimates by going as deep as 3,000 meters, or nearly 1.9 miles, beneath the farmland
of the Central Valley. Based on the data, they calculated the quantity of fresh groundwater at 2,700 cubic
kilometers, nearly triple the amount in previous estimates.

It's not clear how much of that water might be economically feasible to pump and use in the future. Much of the
water is deeper underground than existing wells can reach.

Then there’s also the issue of salinity. Some of the deep groundwater has higher salt concentrations than
water found at shallower levels, so desalination or other treatment would be necessary. In their estimate, the
researchers included water with total dissolved solids of up to 3,000 parts per million, much saltier than the
drinking water delivered to taps, which has total dissolved sclids under 1,000 parts per million.

Nevertheless, the scientists said their estimates show substantial water reserves that may be usable in the
future and that ought to be monitored and protected.

“There is quite a bit of groundwater that's of good enough quality that we could potentially use with relatively
little treatment, or less treatment than we thought,” said Kang, a postdoctoral researcher at Stanford’s Earth
System Science Department.

While the scientists call it a “windfall” of water, they also say their findings raise some concerns. If California
keeps drawing water from deeper underground, that would accelerate the sinking of land in some areas. The
ground has already been sinking by about a foot and a half per year in parts of the Central Valley due to heavy
pumping, causing damage to canals and other infrastructure.

Kang and Jackson also found many cases of oil and gas activities occurring in aquifers with usable water.
More monitoring is crucial, Kang said, to determine whether those vulnerable aquifers are being contaminated.
in Kern County, for example, where the petroleum industry has flourished alongside agriculture, the
researchers discovered about one-fifth of oil and gas projects are occurring in underground freshwater
sources, while the remainder are occurring in aquifers with more saline water.

Due to the risk of potential contamination of usable water, Jackson suggested state officials consider requiring
additional permits and data.

"We're lucky to have some extra water, but we need to think about how much to use, how much to save and
how to protect it for the future, too,” said Jackson, a professor of environmental science who has carried out
other research on fracking and water quality.

“We're proposing a conversation about how best to use this freshwater resource,” Jackson said. “We'd like to
see more data collection and data transparency for groundwater in general.”

Jay Famiglietti, the senior water scientist at NASA's Jet Propulsion Laboratory in Pasadena, said hydrologists
have known that basins such as the Central Valley hold large quantities of brackish and saline water deep
down.

He said using data from oil and gas fields is a great idea and researchers should do more of it. But taking
those estimates from small-scale well fields and scaling them up to the entire Central Valley is difficult, he said,
and there is a great deal of uncertainty.

Famiglietti, who is also a professor at the University of California, Irvine, said the study “points to the fact that
we need a comprehensive, detailed hydrogeological exploration program, not only in California but in the other
major aquifers of the United States.”

“The important message is that someday it may be economically and technologically and environmentally
feasible to extract that water,” Famiglietti said. “And for that reason, we should begin thinking about protecting
those waters today.”



6
How much of California’s deep groundwater is actually going to be usable will depend on a variety of questions
ranging from economics to geclogy, said Peter Gleick, president of the Oakland-based Pacific Institute.
“There’s a huge difference between a theoretical estimate of how much groundwater there may be and a
practical estimate of what we might ever be able to tap into.”

During the drought, farms in the San Joaquin Valley have been pumping heavily tc make up for the lack of
surface water, and thousands of people in rural communities have been left with dry wells.

‘Even if there’s a lot down there, we know that our current use is unsustainable in many parts of the valley,”
Gleick said. And if Californians eventually decide to use deeper reserves, they'li be consuming more of the
“fossil water” that has been underground for tens of thousands of years.

“This is more like oil in the ground than it is like water in a river or a reservoir,” Gleick said. “It's not renewable.”

Insufficient data
To diagnose the gaps in California's groundwater data, Moran and other Stanford researchers prepared a
survey and distributed it by email through two listservs that focus on groundwater issues.

They received responses from about 100 people and focused their analysis on answers from about 50 of those
people who have management authority over a specific area. The participants included employees of water
agencies, officials of county, city and tribal governments, and farmers.

In one question, the participants were asked which improvement would most help them better manage
groundwater. The top answer, with 46 percent, was “additional data.”

In another question, 58 percent indicated they see a need for “standardized data collection methods and a
commeon data-sharing platform.”

“Right now you could have 15 or more agencies within a groundwater basin all collecting their own data in their
jurisdictional area, but they may not be sharing it with other agencies,” Moran said. “So if you actually need to
make decisions at the basin scale about how to manage, those data ultimately need to be integrated between
agencies and shared.”

The survey involved researchers with the Water in the West program and also the Stanford Law School. They
found that many local agencies in California don’t have dedicated groundwater monitoring wells.

Based on the survey, Moran and her colleagues recommend a list of changes for agencies to build upon the
requirements in the 2014 Sustainable Groundwater Management Act.

Among other things, they suggest local agencies shouid expand networks of monitoring wells; meter more
wells to track the amounts pumped; and use their authority under the groundwater law to monitor private wells.

They're also caliing for state and federal officials to require local agencies to use consistent monitoring
standards and a common data platform so that information can be shared and used better.

Legislation scrapped

California’s groundwater law gives local agencies a long grace period to meet various requirements — in many
cases until 2022 to adopt plans for sustainable water use, and an additional 20 years to bring aquifers into
balance.

Despite the law, a well-drilling boom has continued in areas where groundwater levels have been dropping. A
bill introduced by Sen. Lois Wolk, D-Davis, would have ciamped down by prohibiting the driiling of most new
wells in places where aquifers are in “critical overdraft,” and by requiring cities and counties in other areas to
start requiring permits.

The bill, SB 1317, was strongly opposed by a variety of influential organizations, such as the Agricultural
Council of California, the Association of California Water Agencies and the California Building industry
Association.



7

The legislation was pulled from consideration last week before it reached the Water, Parks, and Wildlife
Committee. Craig Reynolds, Wolk's chief of staff, said supporters were far short of the necessary votes.

Debi Ores, an attorney and legislative advocate for the Visalia-based Community Water Center, said her
organization backed the bill because it would have slowed the declines in the state's most vulnerable aquifers.

“What we've learned is people are very protective over their ability to pump groundwater however they
choose,” Ores said, "regardless of whatever the negative impacts that pumping may have on their neighbors or
the basin as a whole.”



fLos Anaceles Cimes

Fighting off a Western water war

William Yardley, July 7, 2016
This may be what the start of a water war looks like.

Drought is draining the West's largest reservoir, Lake Mead, to historic low levels. Forecasts say climate
change will make things worse. Headlines warn of water shortages and cutbacks. Members of Congress are
moving to protect their states’ supplies.

Yet if war is really imminent, why is one of the region’s most experienced water managers doing the same
thing he has done for years: tinkering?

“I like to describe this as another incremental step,” said Tom Buschatzke, director of the Arizona Department
of Water Resources.

Buschatzke was talking about a plan he is helping develop, along with water managers in California, Nevada
and Mexico, that would voluntarily reduce water allocations from the Colorado River to those three states and
Mexico. They hope to have it in place in time to avoid steeper, mandatory cuts that could begin as soon as
2018.

Would their plan change everything? Would it finally fix the increasingly inadequate blend of canals,
conservation and compromises that somehow keeps water flowing to more than 25 million people, including a
substantial chunk of those in Southern California?

But for Buschatzke, who has spent decades efficiently providing water for a desert population — Arizona uses
less water now than it did 80 years ago even though the population has soared from 1.1 million to 6.7 million —
the big fix is actually in the accumulation of all the little fixes he and others are constantly making. A federal
grant for new technology that will better measure water use. Paying a farmer to fallow a field. Saying nice
things about your colleagues across the state line and the fine folks in Washington. Keeping things collegial.
Sharing. Saving. Preserving the process — and the peace.

‘I don't think a water war is inevitable,” he said. “I think we've proven over the last 20 years that we can
effectively work together to find solutions that really work. And as long as we continue to do that, the water war
won't happen.”

The current project, called the drought contingency plan, is a tweak to a previous tweak. Nearly a decade ago,
water managers recognized that Lake Mead was draining faster than predicted. They recalibrated plans for
how they could handle cutbacks. Now, with Lake Mead dropping even faster, they are recalibrating again.

The goal, as has been the case for years, is for water users to limit how much they take out of Lake Mead. The
less they take, the less likely the lake will drop to levels that prompt mandatory cuts.

Yet the cuts would not apply evenly. Under an agreement reached in the 1960s, California is not required to
make any cuts, even if the lake drops so low that Arizona and Nevada lose everything.

But now, even California is willing to conserve because officials know that, in the event of catastrophe, they will
be forced to share anyway. It is better to try to prevent the catastrophe in the first place — and keep the federai
government from taking over a process the states want to control.



9
There is no firm draft of the drought contingency plan, but the gist of it has been floated at meetings for several
weeks. Under the plan, Arizona and Nevada would take cuts before California, but California eventually could
take cuts too — again, with the goal of staving off even more severe cuts if it does nothing.

Buschatzke, who speaks weekly with managers in other states, said he thinks California has a new
appreciation for Arizona’s endless search for efficiency.

‘| think the drought in California, the severe impacts on the state water supply, have made them feel what it's
like to be Arizona,” he said.

That said, Arizona does not completely trust California. Nor does California necessarily go looking for ways to
help. California has resisted legislation sponsored by Sen. Jeff Flake(R-Ariz.) that would ensure that any water
Arizona chooses to leave in Lake Mead to prop up elevation levels actually stays in the lake, that another state
cannot take it.

Arizona has an elaborate underground storage system and some residents want to fiil it by drawing down all
of the Colorado River water the state is allowed to take under the law. Water managers choose not to do so,
believing it will help the state in the long run to safeguard Lake Mead. The Flake legislation would add
protection for taking that approach.

“We have a finite amount of water to put underground,” Buschatzke said, “And so every galion that we don't
put underground, that we put into Lake Mead, makes a difference. Our ability to continue to add to our
underground storage is decreasing over time.”

There are expensive and controversial ideas for solving the West's water problems: desalination; transforming
sewage into tap water; scaling back agriculture; water markets. But until a cure-all comes along — and
somebody agrees to pay for it — expect more nipping and tucking.

“We are offsetting that first shortage declaration by the action we are taking,” Buschatzke said.

There is strong interest in completing the drought contingency plan before top officials at the Bureau of
Reclamation and the Department of Interior, agencies that oversee the Colorado River, are replaced by the
next presidential administration.

If an agreement is reached, it may only delay the inevitable. But delaying a war is no small feat.



10
Date: Jul 10, 2016; Section: Front Page; Page: Al

Experts say state should stay stingy with water

Sure, winter rains replenished many reservoirs, but drought’s far from over.

By SUZANNE HURT

STAFF WRITER

Water suppliers are loosening water-use restrictions and reporting they'll have enough water to meet demand for three
years.

But is that a good idea in the midst of ongoing drought?

Although the end of the state’s mandated water conservation targets is intended to give agencies more flexibility, some
experts worty customers are being sent the message it's no longer vital to conserve,

Water officials expect people to keep conserving after suppliers were allowed to set their own water conservation goals for
the rest of the year.

Felicia Marcus, who heads the State Water Resources Control Board, said Friday that the savings might be somewhat
lower now that the state is no longer in such “extreme peril” after the winter's significant snow and rainfall levels.

Yet she’s alarmed because some suppliers believe their ability to meet customers’ water needs means they don't need to
keep conserving. Conservation is just the “right thing to do” as drought cycles may become longer than the normal three to
four years, she said.

"I have a lot of faith in the public. | think the public gets it,” Marcus said. “It's appropriate to relax the standards locally —
it's not appropriate to say, ‘Go use water with wild abandon.’ ”

‘PROACTIVE WITH CONSERVATION’

The state’s roughly 400 water suppliers were required to set their own water conservation goals and provide supporting
documentation by June 22, but some submissions were incomplete as of Friday, state water officials reported.

The information is expected to be posted online by late in the month. The new, selfimposed targets will be in effect
through January.

Californians continued to cut back on water use in May, even after state water officials stopped imposing their own
conservation targets on suppliers.

State water use decreased by 28 percent in May 2016 compared with May 2013, and water use decreased by 24.5 percent
from June 2015 to May 2016 compared with June 2012 to May 2013, when emergency conservation mandates were put in
place.

Suppliers such as the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California say they'll keep pushing customers to reduce
consumption. The agency told its 26 public agency clients by June 15 they expect to have enough water to meet demand.

Metropolitan officials are canfident after spending nearly $1 billion to develop diversified, drought-resilient local supplies
and increase conservation since 1991, Water storage capacity grew from about 1 million acre-feet to about 5.8 million acre-
feet by 2011, said Metropolitan board Chairman Randy Record, also president of the Perrisbased Eastem Municipal Water
District board.

In April, Metropolitan’s board agreed to spend $100million for conservation programs and watersavings rebates during the
next two years.

“We're going to continue to be very proactive with conservation,” he said.
SOME SKEPTICAL

Kurt Schwabe, a UC Riverside professor of environmental economics and policy and research fellow at the Public Policy
Institute of California Water Policy Center, said the state's stringent, rigid conservation mandates made sense during the
drought’s critical peak a year or s0 ago because developing strategies for all 400 suppliers would have taken too long.

“The amount of precipitation we received in the north gives us a little more breathing room to step back and consider more
effective and flexible approaches,” he said.

Since 2008, the state already has directed suppliers to reduce water use by 20 percent by 2020.

Yet Natural Resources Defense Council leaders are skeptical after so many water suppliers are setting conservation



targets at zero when the developed parts of the state — from about Sacramento to the Mexican border — remain in 1
exceptional drought.
They beiieve suppliers are sending customers a confusing message, the council's senicr policy analyst, Ed Osann, said.
“We just don't think it's prudent to be discarding conservation messaging or conservation targets at this time,” Osann said.

Marcus said being able to mest customers’ water demands should allow conservation targets to be set at lower rates, but
not at zero.

Osann urged suppliers to provide financial incentives to replace water-guzzling landscaping and inefficient imrigation
systems and components such as timed controllers.

Functional turf is still needed for sports, picnicking and active play. But there are plenty of places — such as highway
medians, parkway strips and parking lot borders — where plants should he native or adapted to Southem California’s climate.

Replacing unnecessary grass in public spaces will save water and educate business and homeowners about attractive
alternatives, Osann said.

State officials will watch water use through the summer to see if stricter regulations are needed. The state is moving
toward everyone using water more prudently all the time, Marcus said.

“That gives communities more resilience in the long run,” she added.

FRANK BELLINO, STAFF PHOTOGRAPHE

The inlet channel that feeds Lake Elsinore remains low because of ongoing drought conditions.

BY THE NUMBERS

Number of water suppliers in the state:

About 400

Decrease in water use in May 2016 compared with May 2013:

28%

Decrease in water use from June 2015 to May 2016 compared with June 2012 to May 2013:
24.5%

Increase in water storage capacity by the Metropolitan Water District of Southem Califomia from 1991 to 2011 (in acre-
feet):

About 4.8 million



| Y ﬂm'&’

B1. 50 F’ER SINGLE !SSI

SRS DRAtEn) mﬂf‘&ﬁﬁmﬁm EEEORCHELFRIVALL EX O

INDIC WATER AUTHORITY EXPANDS
"OUTDOCR WATERING POLICY _
Indio Water Authtmty (IWA) has expanded its outdoor watering hiours to before 6
a.m. and after 6 p.m., seven days a week. This is an increase from the agency’s previous
Tuesday, Thursday, Saturday and Sunday watering schednle. The Drought Penalty Sur-
charge will remain in effect to further encourage Water comservation, but will only apply
to residents who exeeed t]aelr Waterbudget .

_ The declsmn to ease restnctmns was based on local and state\wde water supply con-
-- ditions, as well as the State Water Resources Control Board’s decision to change the way
petcentage savings requirements'are calculated for water agencies throughout California..
“Our résidenits have made great strides in 4 collective effort fo conserve water,” said
" IWA Genieral Manger Brian Macy. “Although conditions have begun to i improve after five
‘consecutive years of drought, we must continue to be chhgent in our goal of Iong-term
-responsible water usage s
Mandatory water use ‘restrictions mclude
-~ Outdoor watering is allowed every day before 6 a.m. and after 6 p.m.
B Washmg of hardscapes (sidewalks, dnveways, pavement, etc.) is prohibited.
Water mun-off onto hardscapes is prohibited. -
- Using ahese without a shut-off nozzle to wash vehicles is prohibited.
* " Irrigating up to 48 hours after measurable fainfall 1 is proh1b1ted
‘ Restaurants may on]y serve drinking Water upon request.

Indio Water Authority conﬂnues to offer free indoor water conservation kits,
outdoor irrigation iudits and several rebates including:

- 'Washing machines

- Low-fiow toilets.

+ Turf removal o

+ Irtigation equipment

‘Smart controllers -

- A'mobile app and holine, (760) 391-4129, -are also ava.tlable to report water waste,
For more information, please contact Water Conservation Programs Coordinator Scott
Trujillo at (760) 625-1810 or stryjillo@indio.org. B

For more information, visit www.indiowater.org. Fil




13

fLos Angeles Times

Groups’ water-train initiative loses its flow
Bettina Boxall, July 13, 2016

Backers of a controversial ballot measure intended to shift billions of dollars in state bond money from high
speed rail to water storage projects say they will rewrite the stalled initiative in an effort to gain broader
support.

The original proposal, despite receiving hundreds of thousands of dollars from conservative and corporate
agriculture interests, fell short of its money-raising goals and divided Central Valley growers.

The measure has been promoted as a means of redirecting money earmarked for California’s proposed bullet
train.

But it is fundamentally about water and would amend a key clause of the state constitution and direct more
than $10 billion in taxpayer money to water-storage projects sought by agri-business — particularly farmers on
the west side of the San Joaquin Valley, where drought and environmental restrictions have slashed the
region’s irrigation deliveries.

Supporters hoped to take advantage of drought-driven water concerns and the public’s dwindling enthusiasm
for the $64-billion bullet train project that would connect Southern California and the Bay Area.

They ran into opposition on several fronts, however, with some critics calling it a badly written attempt to
weaken state environmental protections.

The measure’s backers were originally aiming for the November ballot but, in the spring, decided to wait
until 2018 to put it before voters. Still, they continued to raise money and collect signatures to qualify the
existing language by a July 25 deadline.

It soon became clear that the effort would fall short. On July 1, they announced that they plan to start over
again next year with revised language and a fresh signature-gathering campaign.

The delay will allow the initiative’s proponents another shot at raising money, said Anthony Azevedo, a board
member of the California Water Alliance, the farm group behind the initiative.

Rewriting the initiative could attract broader support, he said.

Growers in the Sacramento Valley and the east side of the San Joaquin Valley, for example, worry that the
measure as written would undermine their chances of getting reservoir money from a 2014 water-bond funding
that a state commission is getting ready to spend.

Environmentalists, meanwhile, see the constitutional amendment as an effort to put fish and wildlife at the end
of the water line. And legal experts say the language is so confusing, it will spark endless litigation.



14
“It's going to be a big mess if it passes,” said UC Berkeley environmental law professor Holly Doremus.

Aubrey Bettencourt, the water alliance executive director, said it was too soon to know how the measure will be
revised, or if the constitutional amendment will be dropped. Her group hopes to work with people who had
concerns, she said.

“We're going to start with the language we have and work from there.”

As now worded, the initiative would amend Article X of the California Constitution to make the state’s highest
priority water uses domestic and irrigation.

Though the state Water Code has long done that, attorneys said putting it in the constitution could bolster legal
challenges to state requirements for environmental flows in the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta and rivers
that supply the Central Valley.

“It could be a whole new ballgame,” said Craig Wilson, a former chief counsel of the State Water Resources
Control Board. “It could change the mandate of the water board from having to balance all the different
reasonable uses.”

The initiative would move $8 billion of voter-approved rail bond money to reservoir and groundwater storage
projects and take the $2.7 billion earmarked for storage in the 2014 bond, which was approved by voters as
Proposition 1.

In the process, the proposal would drop Prop. 1 spending criteria that stipulates that state funds can only pay
for the public benefit portions of new storage — such as flood control, recreation and providing water for
ecosystem improvements.

Initiative proponents say the additional storage would supply water for the environment. But the initiative
suggests otherwise. One section specifies that water deliveries from the new facilities “shall only be made if
their primary purpose” is for domestic and irrigation use.

“They want taxpayers to subsidize private benefits for their earmarked projects,” argued Doug Obegi, a staff
attorney for the Natural Resources Defense Council, an environmental group.

Despite endorsements from Congressman Devin Nunes, R-Tulare, and the California arm of Americans for
Prosperity, the Koch-brothers backed nonprofit, the initiative campaign raised only about half the $2 million it
had budgeted for at the beginning of the year.

Many of the biggest contributions came from conservative donors and well-known farming operations on the
San Joaquin Valley’s west side, including growers with land in the sprawling Westlands Water District.

Azevedo, partnerships in the Stone Land Co. — where he is the farm manager — and Stone Land contributed
a total of $138,500 to the initiative campaign, according to the state Fair Political Practices Commission.



15
About 7,000 acres of Stone Land’s 10,000 acres is in Westlands. As one of the iast big districts to join the
federal Central Valley Project, Westlands is among the first to suffer when south-of-the delta deliveries are cut
due to drought or state and federal environmental restrictions.

“I'm living it,” Azevedo said. "l don’t have enough water to farm with. | have 1,500 acres of our ranch that is not’
being farmed right now.”

The top single initiative donor, according to state campaign records, is Forrest Lucas, who
contributed $100,000 last month. The co-founder of Lucas Qil Products, a Corona-based company that makes
lubricants and additives, he owns a large Missouri cattle ranch and lives in Indiana.

Lucas, who did not respond to interview requests, also founded Protect the Harvest in 2014. One of
that organization’s missions, according to its website, is to “respond to the activities of radical groups by
opposing their efforts to pass laws or enact regulations that would restrict our rights, limit our freedoms, and
hinder our access to safe, affordable food.”

Bettencourt, whose family farms on the San Joaquin’s Valley west side, is on the board of America’s Food
Security Foundation, which donated $45,000 to the initiative.

The foundation is part of Ag America, a coalition dedicated to electing public officials with “a proven record of
supporting American agriculture through the application of commonsense free market principles at all levels of
government,” according to the website.

David Guy, president of the Northern California Water Association of Sacramento Valley water suppliers,
which opposed the initiative, said his group is willing to sit down with the alliance.

‘It was just unfortunate the way this kind of evolved,” he said. “If they want to try a different path, we'd welcome
working with them on it."



* The Desert Sun ’

Agency's decision could expand farmland in the desert

lan James, The Desert Sun ,July 14, 2016

Water from the Colorado River could transform several thousand acres of desert into farmland under a change in
policy adopted by the Coachella Valley’s largest water district.

The Coachella Valley Water District's board made the change in a contentious 3-2 vote Tuesday, approving new
guidelines that allow for water from the Colorado River to be supplied in a larger zone than in the past. The decision
has the potential to open up new areas to agriculture, pushing farmland farther outward along the dry fringes of the
eastern Coachella Valley.

The policy shift reflects the valley’s unusual position as an area that is set to receive increasing volumes of water
from the Colorado River in the coming years under a 2003 water transfer deal.

Despite the prolonged drought in the Southwest and the declining levels of Lake Mead, the valley continues to
enjoy water rights that have made possible a lucrative farming economy, producing crops ranging from grapes to
dates, carrots and peppers.

The district's new policy will effectively allow for the acreage of farmtand in the Coachella Valley to grow by as much
as 10 percent. As landowners apply to receive water, those new farms would further boost the agricultural economy
and could also bring additional competition for established farms.

Some farmers and board members voiced concerns at Tuesday's meeting that the approach might jeopardize the
valley’s water rights if other districts object.

The debate over the policy is complex and reaches back to agreements signed many years ago. The district's new
guidelines focus on the use of water from the Colorado River outside the boundaries of a 137,000-acre area known
as Improvement District No. 1, or “ID1.” That area was established in a 1934 contract in which the federal
government agreed to build canals and deliver water to CYWD.

A tweak came in 2003 with the water transfer deal known as the Quantification Settlement Agreement, under which
the Imperial Irrigation District agreed to sell increasing amounts of water to CVWD and the San Diego County Water
Authority. A provision of the deal said CVWD could use the water outside of Improvement District No. 1 for
its groundwater replenishment efforts.

Since 2009, the district has been using the Mid-Valley Pipeline to bring Colorado River water to Palm Desert —
outside the ID1 area — to be combined with recycled water. That water has flowed to some golf courses and
homeowners’ associations, allowing them to reduce pumping from wells. But until now, the water district has
provided Colorado River water outside that area only if properties have wells and would reduce pumping as a result.

Under the new guidelines, property owners in surrounding areas will be able to apply to receive water from the
Colorado River regardless of whether or not they have wells or are pumping groundwater.

John Powell, Jr., the board’'s president, opposed that change. He said the 2003 water transfer agreement made
clear the purpose was to ensure the Coachella Valley would have water supplies to prepare for population growth
and help deal with the problem of groundwater overdraft.

“We obtained additional water to address the overdraft in the valley, and it should be used for that purpose,” Powell
said. He proposed a list of revisions, but the board voted down his proposal.

Powell explained his objections after the meeting, saying the board shouldn’t unilaterally try to change past
water agreements.

“I think it's a very dangerous position to take," he said, "because if we can do that and ignore the agreement, then
certainly somebody else who's also a party to the agreement could do that also.”



17

Groundwater levels have declined in large portions of the Coachella Valley over the past several decades, even as
the inflows of water from the Colorado River have helped partially offset those declines. In recent years, the water
table has risen near ponds that are used to replenish the aquifer in La Quinta, while the biggest declines in the
aquifer have occurred away from those ponds in the middie of the valley.

Under the new guidelines, landowners can apply to the board to receive Colorado River wéter for 10-year terms.
The board has the authority to approve or deny applications, and landowners are responsible for paying the costs of
building pipelines to transport the water.

The water district has received requests from various landowners who want to farm on property outside the ID1
area, said Mark Johnson, the district’s engineering director. He said the district's staff has estimated landowners
could request water for as much as 7,640 additional acres in Oasis, North Shore and other areas in the eastern
portion of the valley. If those projects are built, they will add to a distribution system that carries water to about
75,000 acres.

In the coming decades, residential areas are projected to gradually expand further into farming areas in parts of the
eastern Coachella Valley. Some of the water from the Colorado River could eventually be used in new subdivisions
for outdoor irrigation. But for now, Johnson said, any water piped to new areas will go primarily to farmland.

Much of the land now eligible for water has never been farmed before, Powell said. He said he thinks it would be
prudent for the board to seek approval of the guidelines from the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California
and the Imperial lrrigation District because they could object to the change.

Powell is president and CEO of Peter Rabbit Farms, and he voted “no” along with the board's other member who
works in agriculture: Peter Nelson, a division manager with the company Paramount Citrus.

Nelson said he thinks the policy could lead to a sort of “gold rush” by encouraging people to farm in areas where
they don’t currently have water, thereby creating even more demand for limited supplies of water from the Colorado
River.

The strains on the river have prompted negotiations between California, Arizona and Nevada on proposals to share
in temporary water cutbacks in order to stave off a more severe shortage at Lake Mead. The negotiations have
taken on new urgency as the reservoir has fallen to its lowest levels in history, and CVWD has been among the
water districts involved in the talks.

At the same time, the Coachella Valley has been receiving more water each year through the Coachelta branch of
the Ali-American Canal under the terms of the Quantification Settlement Agreement, or QSA. The water transfer
deal is bringing the valley, which previously received about 330,000 acre-feet from the Colorado River, an additional
41,000 acre-feet of water this year. That is set to grow to an additional 103,000 acre-feet in 2026.

Blaine Carian, a farmer who grows lemons, grapes and dates in Coachella and Qasis, said during the meeting that it
would be “irresponsible” for the board to take a step that might put the area's water rights at risk.

“l just don’t want to put the QSA in jeopardy and that's what worries me,” Carian said. “Hopefully, this action isn’t
problematic.”

Board member Patrick O’Dowd voted for the change together with Ed Pack and Céstulo Estrada. O'Dowd pointed
out there are large portions of the ID1 area that aren’t being farmed, so it's “more of a realignment to current land
uses.”

He called the guidelines an initial step to “begin the conversation of how we might most efficiently use the resources
we have available.”

‘I don't think you're going to see real big, radical changes,” he added, “and nothing’s going to get done until each
and every one of the applications comes before the board for consideration.”



18

THE PRESS-ENTERPRISE

Desert water transfer plan moves forward
By JIM STEINBERG STAFF WRITER, July 14, 2016

The period for legal challenges to the controversial San Bernardino County Mojave Desert underground water
transfer plan has passed, officials for Cadiz Inc. said this week.

“As a result, all challenges to the environmental review and approval of the Cadiz Water Project under the
California Environmental Quality Act, the toughest environmental law in the U.S., are now final, having
withstood scrutiny by state superior and appellate courts,” the company said in a statement. “... The project has
fully demonstrated that it can conserve enough water for 400,000 people without harming the environments,”
Scott Slater, Cadiz CEO and president, said in a statement.

Representatives of two environmental groups say the Cadiz statement ignores the U.S. Bureau of Land
Management’s ruling last October that the project's proposed use of railroad right of way for the pipeline is
outside the scope of grants held under an 1875 railroad act.

“They still have no way to deliver the water,” said lleene Anderson, senior scientist for the Center for Biological
Diversity, one of the plaintiff groups on the losing side of California superior and appellate court decisions.

The BLM administrative law decision last fall requires a full environmental review for a critical water pipeline to
be built that could deliver such remote underground water to customers in parts of Orange County and other
areas.

“They are really trying to create momentum,” said David Lamfrom, California Desert associate director for the
National Parks Conservation Association.

‘Cadiz has been unsuccessful at getting its project going ... and there continue to be significant doubts about
the veracity of their science,” Lamfrom said in a telephone interview Wednesday.

In an email, Slater wrote that Cadiz hopes to secure a ruiing that the proposal to use railroad right of way for a
pipeline is appropriate.

That would be done either by an act of Congress, the BLM changing its mind or a lawsuit, he wrote.

He said that Rep. Ken Calvert, R-Corona, is working to have language enacted as part of an appropriations bili
that would alfow parties like Cadiz to use the railroad right of way over federal land for utilities and pipelines.

That effort to address the scope of railroad right of way grants over federal land has the support of 23
bipartisan members of the U.S. House from 10 states, said Courtney Degener, a Cadiz spokeswoman.

Anderson called Slater's proposed actions "speculative.’;

Lamfrom said the project’s environmental impacts need to be independently vetted with a federally managed
environmental review.

“We're in a drought that isn't going to go away, and California must do all it can to ensure we have secure
water supplies,” Rep. Paul Cook, R-Yucca Valley, said in the Cadiz statement.

“It's time to move ahead with this carefully planned project to bring more water and more jobs to our

communities,” he said.



19

THE PRESS-ENTERPRISE
Corona activates new water guidelines

Conservation plan calls for public outreach and investing in infrastructure.
By Patrick O’'Neill Staff Writer, July 17, 2016

Corona has rolled out its first water conservation plan since Gov. Jerry Brown loosened statewide
restrictions to combat the ongoing drought.

The Urban Water Management Plan, compiled by the city water department and approved by the City
Council on July 6, calls for each resident to conserve about 6 gallons a day, or about 10 percent of his or her
city- approved budget of 60 gallons per person. Those conservation goals are a more feasible alternative to
the sweeping cutbacks Brown issued last spring, said Corona water and power General Manager Jonathan
Daly. The governor had asked Corona to cut 28 percent of all water use compared with 2013, one of the
lowest years for water use on record.

Still, Daly said the Water Department learned a lot from months of stringent statewide orders.

‘I think in the end we learned that although it may not look like it, there is room for further savings,” Daly
said. “You learn people will do the right thing when asked to step up and conserve.”

The five-year water plan is an update to a 2010 draft. It calls for more effective use through the replacement
of aged pipes and meters to detect leaks in the system.

Though replacing infrastructure wiil help, the Water Department said it is counting on public cooperation to
meet goals. The water plan describes public outreach actions to encourage conservation. In Corona, seven
seasonal water technicians visit about six houses a day each to educate homeowners who have exceeded
their allotment. o '

The city will offer training courses for landscapers and residents, public education seminars at schools and
tours of the city facilities to show people what it takes and how much it costs to get water from the ground to
the faucet. Corona also plans to restore programs such as Cash for Grass that have helped save water in
the past. Last year, residents removed 470,000 square feet of turf through a state and city rebate system.
Although the water situation does not seem as dire as it was last year, Daly said he still likes to remind
people that “we live in a desert.” “We’re doing a good job, but unless it starts raining like crazy for a couple
of years, we will continue to remind people that we live in an artificially irrigated area,” Daly said. “We
always need to save.”



The Desert Sun ?

Regulators ordered Californians to cut water use 25%. In the
desert, golf courses cut back 8%

lan James, July 21, 2016

During the past year of drought, whiie many Californians have heeded the call to conserve and managed to
achieve water-savings of nearly 25 percent statewide, one group of water users hasn’t measured up: the goif
courses that spread out across thousands of acres in the desert.

A Desert Sun analysis of data provided by water districts reveals that golf courses in the Coachella Valley used
just 8 percent iess water during the 12-month period ending in May as compared to the same months in 2013.

That overall decrease in golf courses’ water use includes groundwater pumped from wells as well as water
from the Colorado River. When those two main sources are considered together, the records show the area’s
golf courses used more than 87,000 acre-feet of water, or 28.5 billion gallons, in those 12 months — enough to
supply about 175,000 homes with typical levels of water use.

The numbers reveal that one of the country’s biggest concentrations of golf courses — the valley has 121 in all
—~ has been conserving much less than residential and other water customers, many of whom have been hit
with penalties on bills if they miss their conservation targets.

Golf courses and country clubs have faced only occasional small fines of between $50 and $200 from the
Coachella Valley Water District for incidents of wasting water. For the most part, the State Water Resources
Control Board hasn't enforced its drought regulations for commercial properties that rely on private wells. And
without any real threat of penalties or formal tracking of water use by regulators, some residents have been left
wondering how much golf courses are actually conserving.

“They’re awfully green,” said Lynne Joy Rogers, who lives in La Quinta and sees a disconnect between the
mounting strains on water supplies in the Southwest and the ponds, waterfalls and expanses of grass that
continue to dominate the area's golf courses. “They’re using far more water than they should be, and they
need to cut back more.”

The drought, one of the most severe in California’s recorded history, is now in its fifth year. The state water
board relaxed its emergency drought regulations in June after a wetter winter helped raise the levels of
California’s main reservoirs. With that change, none of the valley’s golf courses are now under mandatory
orders to cut back.

But during the past year, between June 2015 and May 2016, when the most stringent drought regulations were
in effect, all golf courses using water from private wells were ordered to do one of two things: either limit
watering to two days a week, which is impractical in the desert climate, or reduce their water use 25 percent
from 2013 levels.

The monthly records provided by the Coachella Valley Water District and the Desert Water Agency show that
requirement hasn’t been met by the golf sector as a whole.

Within the overall 8-percent decrease in water use, golf courses’ pumping of groundwater decreased
substantially more, by 21 percent. That decline partly reflects one of the water districts’ strategic priorities:
connecting more golf courses to pipes carrying Colorado River water and recycled water in order to combat the
long-term problem of declining groundwater levels.



21
In the past three years, the Coachella Valley Water District has started supplying an additional four golf
courses with either Colorado River water or a mix of river water and recycled water, enabling those courses to
use less water from their welis. A total of 67 golf courses, or 55 percent of the valley’s total, continue to rely
solely on groundwater pumped from wells.

At the same time, golf courses used 36 percent more water from the Colorado River as compared to three
years ago.

Tracking golf courses' water use

The latest available figures from the Coachella Valley's two largest water agencies show golf courses have
been using less groundwater and more water from the Colorado River during the past few years. When those
two main water sources are considered together, water use by golf courses was down about 8 percent during
the 12-month period ending in May as compared to the same months in 2013. The amounts of recycled water
available for goif courses have also decreased due to conservation by other water users.

Representatives of golf courses say they’'ve been making important progress in conserving water. They also
acknowledge they have a long way to go — a gap underiined by the failure to meet the state’s 25-percent
mandate for reducing groundwater pumping even as the number of courses relying on wells shrank.

‘| read the numbers the way you read the numbers. It hasn't been complied with. | don't think the state ever
expected them to be complied with because there was no enforcement mechanism,” said Craig Kessler,
director of governmental affairs for the Southern California Golf Association. “l think everyone understood that
it would fall short because up until 2014 there wasn’t even legislation on the books that gave any agency of
government in California the ability soc much as to impose any regulation on groundwater use. So we're in the
infancy of this.”

An honor system
California has more than 850 golf courses, and about 14 percent of them are located in the Coachella Valley.

Nearly three years ago, representatives of the area’s golf industry formed a water conservation task force
together with officials of the Coachella Valley Water District. They've been meeting regularly since 2014 to plan
long-term efforts to reduce water use.

“Golf courses are doing better or probably as well as they've done in the history of the Coachella Valley in
terms of water conservation,” Kessler said, “but this is definitely a work in progress. This is a long-term project.”

Since June 2015, people who receive drinking water from the Coachella Valley Water District have cut back a
cumulative 25.3 percent as compared to 2013, which state officials are using as the baseline year. The Desert
Water Agency’s customers reduced their water use 27.5 percent during the same period. Along with more than
400 other water suppliers across California, they’ve been submitting monthly reports to the state on how much
they've saved.

Those two agencies, the largest of six in the area, also collect information about water use by golf courses and
other businesses that rely on wells. But that information hasn't been reviewed by state regulators because the
drought regulations didn’t call for it.

Instead, golf courses and other commercial properties such as cemeteries were left with an honor system:
They were supposed to keep records of their water use so they could demonstrate they were complying if
anyone were to file a complaint. To date, the State Water Resources Control Board has received just one
complaint of that type, about a cemetery in San Diego County, and in September the board ordered the
cemetery to take additional steps to conserve.



22
Max Gomberg, the state board’s climate and conservation manager, said golf courses and other “self-supplied”
commercial properties could be subject to enforcement if the authorities determine they’ve been violating the
rules. After the regulations were approved last year, he said, the agency’s officials had to be judicious in
choosing where to prioritize their enforcement efforts, and those individual businesses and institutions “weren’t
at the top of the list.”

“We were really focused on meeting the overall goal. So | wouldn't say we've ignored this issue, because it
was raised,” Gomberg said. “But we had to take a careful look at where we were going to focus our resources.”

Colorado River water hasn't fallen under any restrictions in the desert during the drought. The Coachella Valley
Water District says the untreated river water is nonpotable and therefore exempt from the drought regulations,
which require local agencies to submit monthly reports about potable water use only.

Gomberg said state officials’ intent in focusing on “potable” water was to exclude recycled water generated by
wastewater plants. He said what counts as potable water can be a complex question and “that’s not defined in
our regulation with a bright line.”

“l think it does fall in that grey area. They're not treating it, but other people who use the same source, the
Colorado River, and do treat it, it's clearly potable water,” Gomberg said. “Water from the Colorado River is
used for potable purposes in large swaths of Southern California.”

Untreated water from the river flows to the valley through the Coachella branch of the All-American Canali.
While much of that water is used for farming, increasing amounts have been routed to golf courses,
homeowners’ associations and other properties for outdoor irrigation.

During the past year, Coloradc River water accounted for nearly 30 percent of golf courses’ total water use,
and recycled water made up 12 percent. The remainder, more than 58 percent, was pumped from wells.

The area’s reliance on the Colorado River has been increasing even as the severely overallocated river faces
growing pressures. While Lake Mead has reached its lowest levels in history this year, representatives of
California, Arizona and Nevada have been in negotiations on proposals to share in temporary cutbacks to help
prevent a more severe shortage.

At the same time, the Coachella Valley Water District is receiving gradually increasing volumes of water from
the Colorado River under a 2003 water transfer deal, and the district has plans in the coming years to pipe
more of that water to the middle of the valley to combat the long-term problem of declining groundwater levels.

Tracking water-saving progress

Golf courses now account for 22.6 percent of the area’s total groundwater use, down slightly from 23.4 percent
in 2013.

Agriculture, which accounts for roughly half of total water use in the Coachella Valley, has been exempt from
the drought regulations. The area’s farms used 4 percent more water during the 12-month period ending in

May as compared to 2013. Meanwhile, all other nonfarm and nongoif water use — including water delivered to
taps by agencies and water pumped by other well owners — dropped 18.4 percent during the same period.

As people have conserved during the drought, the area’s treatment plants have churned out less recycled
water, so golf courses have received about 1.3 percent less of that reclaimed water.

Water use: Golf, agriculture and other

Records provided by water districts show golf courses accounted for 22.6 percent of the Coachella Valley's



23
total groundwater pumping and 8.8 percent of the area’s use of Colorado River water during the 12-month
period ending in May 2016.

The figures come with some caveats. The Coachella Valley Water District and the Desert Water Agency
prepared the data in response to a request by The Desert Sun. CVWD provided monthly figures by sector for
golf sector, agricuiture and other users. DWA released information about groundwater pumping by individual
well owners, and The Desert Sun divided that data between properties with golf courses and those without.

Some of the water classified as being used by golf courses may actually include water that's used to irrigate
adjacent common areas or homeowners’ associations. On a number of properties, wells and water meters are
shared by golf courses, country clubs and surrounding grassy areas in HOAs.

“If the entity is providing water for a golf course, then we put it in the golf category, but that doesn’t mean that
that entity may not also provide irrigation to things that are not golf,” said Steve Bigley, CYWD's director of
environmental services. The district's staff, he said, typically doesn’t separate water use by sector.

“This is not part of our work to track how much water different users are using,” Bigley said. Overall, he said,
the figures reflect CVWD’s progress toward a key goal of its water management plan: increasing deliveries of
Colorado River water to wean golf courses from groundwater as much as possible.

Kessler, of the Southern California Golf Association, said the lack of meticulous recordkeeping over the years
appears to skew the numbers somewhat because some of the water pumped by golf courses has increasingly
gone to adjacent properties, and that hasn’'t been tracked.

“There's never been a powerful incentive in the past to split off some of this metering and to keep separate
numbers and statistics. There is now,” Kessler said.

Representatives of the area’s golf courses have set a long-term goal of reducing their total water footprint 10
percent below 2010 levels by 2021. They agreed on that goal before the state water board adopted its drought
regulations, and they chose a baseline year when golf courses happened to use less than during the state’s
benchmark year of 2013.

Judging against the available data for 2010, Kessler acknowledged the conservation performance “is
disappointing at this point.”

During the past year, the figures show golf courses have reduced their use of water from all sources —
including groundwater, Colorado River water and recycled water — just 1.4 percent compared to 2010.

“It would help if CYWD had in its possession some of the same regulatory tools that urban water providers
have in other parts of the state to create a combination of incentives and disincentives,” Kessler said.

Under the current system, CYWD and DWA charge well owners per-volume fees based on the costs of
importing water to recharge the aquifer. Kessler said it would help if the agencies had the authority to create
“gentle sticks, gentle carrots” to encourage courses to stick to a water budget.

Budgets have been assigned by other urban districts that deliver water to golf courses in Southern California,
and Kessler said that type of system has helped. He said the valley’'s Golf and Water Task Force has
developed a budget model that would take into account differences in wind and other factors among the area’s
golf courses.

Establishing such a system, however, would require some changes because the local water districts don’t have
the authority to do it under state law, Kessler said. Those sorts of changes might be put in place as water
districts take on new regulatory responsibilities under Caiifornia’s Sustainable Groundwater Management Act,
which Gov. Jerry Brown signed in 2014,



24
‘We have seen some traction on this voluntary system, but we remain concerned as to whether we'll get
sufficient traction to get to what we know is the goal,” Kessler said. “We're seeing some progress moving
forward and we hope to see it accelerate, but it's an open question.”

Conservation incentives

The pace of change may boil down in large part to dollars and cents. While golf remains a key pillar of the
desert’s resort economy, many country clubs across the country have been gradually losing members. That
trend has squeezed budgets and put some courses out of business.

To help cover the costs of tearing out grass and putting in desert landscaping, CVWD began offering golf
courses cash rebates last year and has provided up to $105,000 to 14 courses. Those rebates, totaling nearly
$1 million, were funded with a state grant and covered a portion of the cost for each course to remove up to 7
acres of grass.

The rebates have been smaller than those offered by some other agencies in Southern California. Golf clubs
have also spent their own money as part of those projects.

“There are courses in this community that realize, yes, we need to conserve,” said Stu Rowland, director of golf
operations at Rancho La Quinta Country Club. "We understand the issues of groundwater sustainability, and
for those courses to take it upon themselves to invest in that, without just getting a million-dollar check for
doing it, | think that shows a lot of the concern and the willingness of this area.”

At the same time, Rowland agreed with Kessler that to achieve bigger water savings in the years ahead, “you
need some sticks” — such as a budget system that would establish acceptable levels of water use and penalize
any golf courses that don’t comply. Those sorts of limits could help in an area where water prices are among
the lowest in the state.

During the past 13 months, the area's two biggest water districts say they have issued a combined total of 470
fines for various violations of drought rules such as watering during restricted hours or hosing down driveways.

CVWD has received 22 complaints of water waste involving country clubs of golf courses for incidents such as
broken sprinklers, irrigation runoff, or watering on restricted days. Conservation Manager Katie Ruark said the
district issued country clubs and golf courses 11 fines, which can range from $50 to $200.

Detailed information about water use by individual golf courses has been largely kept confidential in recent
years. The Coachella Valley Water District has declined repeated requests for records showing annual
groundwater pumping by individual businesses such as golf courses, resorts and farms.

Until 2013, the district included that data in some of its annual reports. Then CVWD stopped releasing the
information after The Desert Sun published the names of some of the area’s biggest water users.

The issue prompted a lawsuit by the First Amendment Coalition in 2014. In a settlement, DWA resumed
disclosing pumping data for businesses and organizations. CVWD later won the case in Riverside County
Superior Court, with the judge backing its argument that the district didn’'t need to disclose the data.

The lack of data has made it impossible to track whether individual courses have followed the state’s drought
rules. In an investigation last year, The Desert Sun contacted more than 50 golf facilities in an effort to find out
whether and how they were complying. Representatives of more than three-fifths of them didn’t respond or
declined to be interviewed.

Other managers of golf courses say they're making big progress in saving water.



25
Jonas Conlan, the golf course superintendent at Desert Princess Country Club in Cathedral City, said
homeowners have generally welcomed the changes as grass has been ripped out and replaced with
decomposed granite, boulders and native plants alongside portions of the 27-hoie course.

“We have a little over 200 acres total on the golf course, and we'll probably have about a little over 10 percent
of that after this fall converted to desert landscape,” said Conlan, whose club has invested in the projects and
also received a $105,000 rebate from CVWD last year.

Standing in the shade next to a pond on a sweltering afternoon, Conlan explained that he keeps a close eye on
the irrigation system to limit watering as much as possible. Along the edges of the course, some patches of
green grass were sprinkled with golden blades

Two golfers began a game on the course, which was otherwise deserted. They sent balls sailing down a
fairway in the 105-degree heat, one of them shouting: “Fore!”

Desert Princess relies on groundwater, so it was subject to the state’s 25-percent cutback requirement.

Asked if the country club has met that target, Conlan said he thinks so. He said a breakdown needs to be
prepared to separate the course’s water use from the adjacent condos and homeowners’ association, all of
which share water from two wells.

“From my initial looks and estimates of it, we seem to be right around the 20 to 25 percent rate,” Conlan said.
“As we pencil out those numbers and figure that stuff out here, we'll probably be pretty close if not meeting that
expectation.”

Going forward, he said, the course should be able to easily sustain reductions of 25 percent or more,
especially as more turf is removed.

Many of the Coachella Valley's golf courses were designed decades ago and use considerably more water
than typical courses in Las Vegas or the Phoenix/Scottsdale area, where tighter rules have led to the
construction of desert courses with much less grass.

Conlan and others in the golf business say they expect courses will continue saving more, especially as
attitudes shift toward an acceptance of having a lot less grass.

“‘Everybody needs to understand that there’s sort of a movement to go in a direction where we're saving
water,” Conlan said.

Within some golf clubs, Conlan said managers have faced opposition from those who “say they want to have it
green and they’ll pay for it green.”

“But yet they have to understand that we can’t necessarily have it all green because there's only a limited
supply of water," he said. “It's going to take a little bit of time, but | think people know that this is the direction
that we have to go.”

lan James writes about water and the environment for The Desert Sun.
Email:ian james@desertsun.com Twilter; @ TDSlanJames

About the data

The Desert Sun obtained water data from Coachella Valley water districts in response to requests filed under
the California Public Records Act.



26

The Coachella Valley Water District and the Desert Water Agency provided monthly data on the amounts of
groundwater pumped, Colorado River water diverted and recycled water delivered since 2009. Small quantities
of surface water that DWA collects from creeks were excluded from the analysis.

As part of the data provided, CYWD provided monthly figures for the golf sector. DWA provided figures for
individual well owners, and the Desert Sun divided up those well owners between those with golf courses and
those without. In the case of both agencies, some of the water use classified as being for golf may include
water that's used for adjacent common areas or homeowners' associations.

One golf course, the O’Donnell Golf Club in Palm Springs, was not included. The golf club is a DWA drinking
water customer and the agency declined to release the data, citing an exemption in the Public Records Act for
utility customer information.

The water agencies released groundwater pumping information based on monthly billing of the “replenishment
assessment charge.” The agencies collect the fees from all well owners that pump more than 25 acre-feet of
groundwater per year. Any other well owners that use less are exempt and not included in the data. CYWD
said some well owners that should be assessed the fee may not yet be enrolled and therefore would also be
left out.

Rebates for goif courses to remove grass

The Coachella Valley Water District has provided rebates to cover a portion of the costs for golf courses to
remove up to 7 acres of grass and convert those areas to desert landscaping. Fourteen golf courses have
received rebates totaling nearly $1 million in the past year and a half. The rebates were funded with a state
grant.

Avondale — $67,050

Bermuda Dunes - $31,800

Marrakesh Country Club — $62,500

Cathedral City Country Club, Arroyo Course — $102,450

Ironwood Country Club, North and South — $105,000

Palm Desert Country Club, Championship — $210,000 (two separate rebates combined)

Desert Princes Country Club, Cielo Vista Course - $105,000

Golf Course at IW, East — $61,800

La Quinta Resort and Club, Citrus Course — $15,000

PGA West, Jack Nicklaus Tournament — $23,400

Tri Palms Estate — $34,200

PGA West, TPC Stadium — $30,300

Shadow Mountain Golf Club — $55,200

Palm Desert Resort CC — $91,350

Source: Coachella Valley Water District



27

fLos Angeles Cimes

Judge: Yorba Linda residents can't use a referendum to void water
rate hikes

A sign calling for Yorba Linda residents to sign a petition to stop water rate increases is posted on a fence
in Yorba Linda. (Christina House / For The Times)

By Matt Stevens, July 25, 2016

An Orange County Superior Court judge ruled Monday in a closely watched case that customers of a water district
cannot void rate increases using a referendum.

The ruling comes in the protracted fight between a group of Yorba Linda residents and their water provider over a
$25-a-month rate increase. The dispute has at times become heated as both sides have accused the other of
distorting facts. Two of the water district's five board members now face recalls, and one other board member
announced last week that he would retire rather than face reelection in the fall.

Having failed to overturn the increase through the traditional process, the residents had submitted a referendum,
demanding that the district repeal the new rates or put them up to a vote.

But the water district rejected the referendum, saying it was not valid under the law, so the residents sued the district
in January asking the court to order the water provider to honor the referendum.

But on Monday, Judge Robert J. Moss denied that request. In court documents, Moss nodded to California’s
prolonged drought and wrote that the “consequences” of the court ordering the water district to repeal the rates or
put them on the ballot “would be serious.”

The water rates, Moss wrote, were “passed as an urgency measure enacted to avoid severe constraints on the
district's ability to meet its fixed financial obligations during the current severe drought.”

“This finding, coupled with the finding that the essential govemmental function of providing safe, clean, potable
water might be impaired if the referendum is allowed to proceed, compel the court to deny the petition,” Moss wrote
in his decision.

Ed Rakochy, a spokesman for the Yorba Linda Taxpayers Assn., which had sued the water district, said he was
“very disappointed” by the decision.

“The judge missed the constitutional argument that the voters have a right to a referendum,” Rakochy said. “There's
no hard evidence that this was an emergency measure. It wasn’t even passed as an emergency measure. It's like
looking at a cat and saying, ‘That's a nice dog.’

“In my humble opinion, | don't think the judge wants to rock the boat.... This is a safe decision. He can sit there and
claim, ‘Hey, we were in a drought.”

Yorba Linda Water District spokesman Damon Micalizzi said, “It's unfortunate that it had to come to this, but as you
can see, the judge’s ruling validates everything we've done, every step of the way.”

Across California, the drought and mandatory water conservation have been driving down water use, and in some
cases, left gaping holes in the budgets of water providers, officials from various water districts have said. To help
cover the deficits, scme suppliers have chosen to raise water rates.

Many officials at those water districts said they were watching the Yorba Linda case and worrying about its potential
effect on their own rate-making ability.

Had the court allowed water rate increases to be repealed through a referendum, officials said they were concerned
that residents would turn to that option whenever they did not want to pay an increase. That kind of revenue
instability would cause districts to default on debt obligations and eventually go bankrupt, officials warned.



28

But members of the Yorba Linda Taxpayers Assn. countered that although they did not want to hinder their district's
ability to operate, the power to decide a rate increase should rest with the ratepayers — and that power should be
easier for them to exercise than it is under voter-approved Proposition 218.

Leaders of the taxpayers group said they felt exploited by the hasty increase, which raised the basic service charge
to $41 from about $16. They said the increase was excessive, and their attorneys argued that the residents had a
constitutional right to repeal the rates through a referendum.

Moss disagreed, writing in his two-page order that “while voters have a right to challenge legislative enactments
through the referendum process, that right is not unlimited.”

The California Constitution, Moss wrote, “specifically precludes certain types of legislative enactments from the
referendum process. Namely, statutes that are urgency statutes.”

He wrote that the court was “persuaded” that the water rate hikes were an “urgency measure.”

Rakochy, the spokesman for the residents’ group, said he and his colleagues would “talk over” whether to appeal
the ruling.

Citing loosened state conservation requirements and an anticipated increase in water sales, the water district's
board unanimously adopted new water rates |last week that reduced the basic service charge by about $9.

In setting the new rates, the board also rescinded the old ones, which is one of two specific actions that residents
had demanded in their lawsuit.

But Rakochy said the decrease “hasn’t changed our thinking.”

“The rates need to go down more — $9 is a joke,” he said, adding that the water district should provide rebates to its
customers to cover what the group says is higher-than-projected profits.

As the fight in Yorba Linda evoived, the rhetoric between the water district and some of its customers became
heated and personal.

On the taxpayer association's Facebook page, a few residents called for a boycott of a local restaurant owned by
one of the water district's board members. Meanwhile, water district board members have openly accused the group
of attempting to seize political power.

Earlier this year the taxpayers association filed petitions with the Orange County registrar of voters to recall two of
the water district’s five board members; those petitions qualified Thursday, the registrar of voters said.

Two other board members had been up for reelection in the fall, but one of them, Michael Beverage, announced last
week that he would not seek another term.

Yorba Linda Water District Board President Ric Collett said he hopes that the court decision will help sway voters to
oppose the recall.

He said the lawsuit cost the district about $250,000; the district’s recent rate instability forced the district to refinance
loans at a higher-than-normal rate, costing ratepayers an additional $330,000, he added.

Collett said he would ask the district’s legal counsel whether it would be appropriate to countersue the Yorba Linda
Taxpayers Assn. and plaintiff Kent Ebinger to recover legal fees.

The taxpayer group, which Collett said has functioned under different names in the past, “has caused dissension in
our community for too many years.”

“It's time,” Collett said, “to push back a little and say, ‘Stop.”



& The Desert Sun :

Water tunnels pitched to regulators

Federal, state leaders back $15.7 billion project

Scott Smith, Associated Press, July 27, 2016

FRESNO- Representatives of California Gov. Jerry Brown and the Obama administration began making their pitch
for approval Tuesday to build a pair of massive water tunnels under the SacramentoSan Joaquin River Delta.

They propose building the tunnels — each four stories high and running 35 miles long — to send Sacramento River
water south to millions of residents and vast farmland in dry regions of the state. The project is estimated to cost of
$15.7 billion.

Backers face opposition, however, from deltaarea communities and farmers, who fear it will further degrade the hub
of California’s water system without producing more water for the droughtparched state.

State and federal officials told regulators at the opening of the hearing in Sacramento that the tunnels would correct
design flaws in the water system that have led to the decline of the tiny Delta smelt and Chinook salmon populations
and unreliable water deliveries.

California’s water chalienges are a top priority to the Obama administration, said Letty Belin, senior counselor to the
deputy secretary at the U.S. Department of the Interior.

“Now is the time to act,” she said. “The cost of doing nothing is too great.”

To move forward, state and federal officials need approval of the State Please see TUNNELS, 10A Continued from
9A Water Resources Control Board to take water from the Sacramento River. Officials most prove that drawing
water from the Sacramentc River won't harm others.

Hearings on the project opened Tuesday and are expected to last months. A second hearing will follow, addressing
the project's impact to wildlife and the environment.

Opponents such as state Sen. Cathleen Galgiani, a Democrat from Stockton representing delta residents, said the
tunnels will siphon river water needed to dilute pollution in the delta.

She also fears that the project will end up costing taxpayers, despite current plans to make water agencies pay for it.
“The proposed tunnels lacks comprehensive finance plan, and it's a financial risk that California is not prepared to
take,” Galgiani said.

The detlta is fed by two of two big rivers that start high in the northern California mountains. It is the heart of the
state’s water system, providing water to twothirds of the state’s residents, 3 million acres of farmiand, and wildlife.

State and federal officials in the1960s reengineered the delta to pump water from the southern end of the delta to
farms and communities as distant as San Diego. The pumps, however, altered the delta's flow, pulling migrating fish
off course.

John Laird, secretary of California’s Natural Resources Agency, told regulators that the tunnels would correct the
delta flows while also protecting the state’s water system from an inevitable major earthquake and sealevel rise
driven by climate change.

“The existing infrastructure does not work well,” Laird said. “We have debated, litigated and legislated, but our
ecosystem and supply problems have only worsened in the last three decades.”



Activities:
7/1/116-7/31/16
777116

711118
7114118

71916

7121116

7121116

7122116

6/23/16

7129116

8-B

DESERT WATER AGENCY

PUBLIC INFORMATION
ACTIVITIES

JULY 2016

Vicki Petek conducted 5 turf buy back post-conversion and follow-up inspections.

Ashley Metzger was on a live conservation segment with KESQ on the annual water
quality report.

Ashley Metzger presented at the Mizell Senior Center on drought and conservation.
Ashley Metzger was on a live conservation segment with KESQ on turf buy back.

Ashley Metzger presented to a Cathedral City Rotary Club on DWA background,
drought and cost drivers.

Ashley Metzger was on a live conservation segment with KESQ on eBilling.

DWA hosted three turf buy back workshops. (landscapers, large-scale projects,
single-family homes)

Ashley Metzger met with Palm Springs High School to discuss public service
announcement options.

Ashley Metzger was on a live conservation segment with KESQ on pool water saving
tips.

Ashley Metzger was interviewed by Joey English on various conservation programs
(to air August 6).

Public Information Releases:

July 18 — Desert Water Agency launches eBilling service.

July 20 — Reminder regarding July 21 turf buy back workshops

Water Conserval_:ion Reviews

Canyon West Estates Plaza Villas

Centre Court Club
Marabella Estates

Riviera Gardens Condos
Sunrise Palms

Palm Springs Villas Il City of Palm Springs

Water Conservation Reviews are annual mailings sent to large water users. The Reviews include a 5-year consumption report,
fadility map, and information brochures. The purpose is to help customers save water by summarizing their consumption, and
offering suggestions for reducing usage. Occasionally, after viewing, the recipient may contact DWA for assistance in the form of a

Mobile Lab Evaluation.



"4 Google Analytics

Audience Overview

O Alf Users
100.00% Sessions

Desert Water Agency - htip:/iwww.dwa.... Go to this report
All Web Site Data

Jul 1, 2016 - Jul 29, 2016

Overview
@ Sessions

400
%00

Jul g Jul 15 Jul 22 Jul 28
B New Visitor ™ Returning Visitor

Sessions Users Pageviews
4,561 3,676 10,305
Pages / Session Avg. Session Duration Bounce Rate
2.26 00:01:48 48.08%
et e,y T, e e it

% New Sessions

65.62%

L i N

Language Sessions % Sesslons
1. en-us 3,573 N 78.34%
2. (not set) ga2 [l 18.46%
3. enca 27 | 0.59%
4, en 26 | 0.57%
5. en-gb 25 | 0.55%
6. ko-kr 12 | 0.26%
7. zh-cn 6 | 0.13%
8. pt-br 5 | D.11%
9. de-de 4 | 0.08%
10.de 3 | 0.07%

© 2016 Google



e ISMISS
poNT “"Sﬂﬁuuﬁ'”

TH

Desert Water Agency
www, dwa arg/restrictions .
Facebook Analytics
DESERT, WATER
; July 2016
Agtions on Page ! Page Views ’ Page Lilws
- 34 )
Fil s w55% “am ey wEl%
\/\’\fvj\zv\/\/\— A~ A
Brsch ' PasiEngagemenis / Vigkas
Wi B bk B § bRy 23
5,861 360 24
CEesorrtea e fw 3% Fae T e e w 3% Tatal VoA v w 70%%
Recent Prometions on Desert Water Agensy + Creale New Promotion

BoosiedPost
Ends ir, 37 davs 383 1 6* $6_41
Tharks io those w0 attended our wrf buy back . .. 4 . L b 1 L

'S

g SooswedPost 1,145 50 $15.00

- Fimw - el o 7
v % - s 5130
Doy furf Uy back grant workshops ane TOMOR, il 4 b 4 ¢

[ Doosiad Rout 738 7 $15.00

e Flearimess A g BT T w
eope Flesnhe of §1500 2

4
4

Wan! move DVWA rews? Subscribe 1o owr YouTu. . 4 > L] 3 5§ 13

,
[
i
w
.

|5
“
o)
o
1
S
§

[ &Y

Boosl Again

Published * Pozt Type Targeting Resch Engapznent Promots
Or28ae e DESEST Waler Agency likes Jerry a ] o o

F5 e 7 Sweflen KE 2Q - TV and Calfo b . a | Ei:; o fasd
07252076 — ‘hanits to those wiha atiended o . 40 == bRz s

b T & ur turfbuy hack workshons. v g @ s 21 = Bonsted. $6.42
G700 Here's arefieshing way o indra . o P b | m
T te during the heat wae! 2 ] |

ErIOo0E | Our hurf buy back grant wonsho £ ¥ i - E* ] === | ¢ Wiew Results
POt arm o8 are TOMORROW sfternoon. § it =N

Bnosies S50



Frgelne

S TEa

OF/I5:2016

Q7R 2018

FEpm.

TA5E0

2ESa

1220E

0720
RERC P

Pt ti- cxl]

VUEE

0707 20é

ufaslieloyl

[efe s

P

Or.0520ne

TR

O 052016

i 2ie

= Do wou want your DA bill and
bﬂ' usage infmation o come strai

' Netor-pmfit public water agent
! fes Mave had fuge fnancial imp

DA customers saved 33% n J
une compared 1o 2013 Keepup

mEx meea will chamge Hie

- hlatas thée monaooral mogise

3 : Thesera an 2pp far thatl

Ewery day rings anew chance
o #savewaher

. Desert Water Agency likes ‘nian
o Empire Waterkeeper and Meir

The fuhure iz so bright. Dontm
55 ¥ese kids rapoing 2bout the

¢ Wanl more DWA news? Subzeri
be 1o our ¥ewTube chanrel for o

Desm 1 Wiher Bgercy's sumine
st £ few reoe el

Wa'er wivert #counts.

Q Lise water wisehy.. lorewer!
)
1
1)

Hawve asafe hapgy and walsr s
avwy Fourth of July!

P Our most recent waier guality re
L' port is now availiable. Take ape

o Prepping for a party his weeken
;- o Remember, you can no long

Total Page Likes as of Today: B44

FRSEL R Y W T

Oy or g o seielt

e

w4

i

l'lu

e~

W

8

383

[in]

g

265

B2

a I
i I
2 I
u !
a i
“ |
g |
u

z I
1 [
a

a

u 1
a I

% i
4 |
i n
| |
5 i
2 |
3 i
N 8
28 =
L Il
14 [
1
Tzl Pape Lk

Boosi Past

Bonst Pasi

Boos! Posd

Baoosf Post

et L

LKA

]

C iow Results

vkl §145.00

Hoosl Post

Baost Pasl

& ViewResuliz
E rricd: $5.00

© View Resulls
Frslad: $5.090

Bt Prasd

BENCHI ARK
0 400re ki TR
b b orange gy tras,

i



It
.DESEI&M‘ER

JI 2016 - v ez

Desert Water Agency
Twitter Analytics
July 2016

PWEET HIGHLIGHT

Top Tweet 2xwea” 2 mownors

It's yue - #apwater is more regulated
than pricey botlled water. Plus your snazzy
reusable botlle cuts wasie.

wilter comySFWalewstalug

-
Fow = v

View Tweat activity View alf Tweat actedy

Top Follower «isuec 5, 2% zeopis

- TP (Y% 2 R [

Tasty Cravings

TROGUCIRNINGS  PTLLAD Yo

Delicious tlelights of afl thinge fonc. Focd food food
food... dool... Feed your eyes! Your daily food pom.

“iew profie View fokowers dashboard

Tep media Tweet serer 3z meves o
Desent Water Agency cusicmers saved

33% in June. Kee) it up - conservation is
a way o7 ilfe pic.twitter cormyPhiNWEZY XK

L »

Yiew all Twesd actndty

View Tweet activily



	Item 6A 08 02 16 Penalty hearings staff report.pdf
	08 02 16  penalty hearing packet.pdf
	071916 Penalty hearing summary PSVII.pdf
	34342400-0#2
	2800 E Los Felices Cir 3
	2800 E Los Felices Cir 4
	2800 E los Felices Cir 1
	2800 E Los Felices Cir 2
	PSVII hearing request
	Hearing summary Huntington Gardens
	44131604-2 #2 Huntington Gardens letter
	100 S Sunrise Way 1
	Huntington Gardens request for hearing
	Hearing summaries Karchmer
	Desert Water Violation
	Karchmer request for hearing


	Item 7B July 2016 SWC Memo (Desert)-c1.pdf
	MEMORANDUM
	1. State Water Project Contractors Authority Board Meeting




